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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

GROUP STRUCTURE
e LB

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(the “Company”)
MELEEEERGRAT
(T4&=2aal)
and

&

its subsidiaries (the “Group”)

HiEAR ([AKHE])

with focus on
Tourism-Related Business, Property Investments and Securities Trading

EERREEBREY MERERESHEE

Tourism-Related Property Securities
Business Investments Trading
hix 2 AR BA < 15 MERE HHEEE

Cruise Ship
Charter Services

HemH E AR
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFEHES

Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of New Century Group
Hong Kong Limited (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
to you the annual results for the financial year ended 31
March 2015 (the “Year").

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the Year, our major profit contribution was from the
Group's securities trading segment which consists mainly of
blue chips in the Hong Kong and Singapore stock markets.
Boosted by the positive investment sentiment, the Group
recorded a segment profit of HK$61,714,000 during the
Year, which proved our proactive yet prudent investment
strategy has remained sound and solid.

Capitalizing on the strength and growth of stock market,
both Hong Kong's and Singapore's property sectors
experienced steady growth during the Year. The revenue
of our property investments increased by 8.3% to
HK$20,214,000 due to a rise in rental rate for new and
renewed tenancies of investment properties in Hong Kong
and Singapore.

The tourism sector in Singapore remains in good shape
which supports the demand for our cruise ships. However,
due to the drydock arrangement during the Year, our
charter service revenue recorded a drop of 6.9% to
HK$65,950,000.

Despite the measures we took to maintain the occupancy
level of our hotel, our hotel operations in Batam Resort
were still hit by the increase in salary and other related
expenses, putting pressure on the operating costs.
In order to focus our resources on the Group’s profit
making businesses under such a challenging operating
environment, we disposed of the loss-making hotel
operations in Batam Resort on 31 July 2014 and recorded
a gain of HK$20,344,000 on the disposal. This would
provide the Group with an exit opportunity to realise the
loss-making investment at a reasonable price and enable us
to better utilise our resources and invest in other potential
opportunities.
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will remain focused on
preserving and reinforcing its long-established strengths,
thus deepening its penetration into segments that would

offer growth and enlarge our customer and income bases.

We are confident that our strategy of business
diversification allows us to overcome the challenges and
create new opportunities through closely monitoring the
latest market trend of each business segment. We will
continue to explore other potential investment opportunities

and keep pace with the stock markets.

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers
and other business associates for their long-term support.
I would also like to thank our directors, management
team and all staff members, whose talents and efforts are
our most valuable resources, for their contribution to the

continuous growth of the Group.

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEt ST

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group's revenue
increased by 75.3% to HK$153,994,000 (2014:
HK$87,870,000). The Group’s revenue from continuing
operations was up 118.2% to HK$147,911,000 (2014:
HK$67,797,000). The revenue from discontinued
operation, hotel operations in Batam Resort, was
HK$6,083,000 (2014: HK$20,073,000). Thanks to the
improvement from loss to profit in the segment results
of securities trading, together with the one-off gain on
the disposal of hotel business at Batam Resort and
recognition of the one-off non-cash gain arising from
release of exchange reserve on dissolution of certain
immaterial subsidiaries, profit attributable to owners of
the Company rose to HK$98,830,000 for the Year (2014:
HK$29,907,000). Basic earnings per share was HK1.71
cents (2014: HKO.52 cent).

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends a final dividend of HKO.55 cent
per share, payable to shareholders of the Company whose
names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on 3 September 2015. Subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 28 August 2015, the final
dividend will be paid on 23 September 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled
on Friday, 28 August 2015 (the “Annual General Meeting”).
For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 25 August 2015 to
Friday, 28 August 2015, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’'s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24
August 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. The record date for entitlement to the proposed
final dividend is on Thursday, 3 September 2015. For
determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed
on Thursday, 3 September 2015 and no transfer of
shares will be effected on such date. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 September 2015.

OPERATIONS
Cruise Ship Charter Services

The charter services of the two cruise ships, namely
“Leisure World” and "Amusement World” (collectively
referred to as the “Cruise Ships"), posted revenue of
HK$65,950,000 for the Year (2014: HK$70,860,000). The
slight fall in revenue was mainly attributed to the drydock
arrangement during the Year. In order to comply with
requirements of the classification society, drydock service
has to be arranged for the Cruise Ships once every two to
three years. During the drydock period, the Cruise Ships
will cease all operations, causing no charter hire income.
The cost of drydock also resulted in fair value losses of
HK$39,962,000 (2014: HK$42,000) on the Cruise Ships.
Thus, the segment profit dropped to HK$9,650,000 (2014:
HK$58,861,000).

In general, the tourism industry remains solid in Singapore
and the Group is confident that the charter services of the
Cruise Ships will receive positive feedbacks in the coming

future.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEST R 5T

Property Investments

During the Year, the property investments segment
recorded an 8.3% increase in revenue to HK$20,214,000
(2014: HK$18,667,000). This was mainly attributed to
the increase in rental rate for new and renewed tenancies
of both Hong Kong and Singapore investment properties.
Furthermore, during the Year, the Group enjoyed the full
rental generated from four adjoining retail units of the
2-storey conservation shophouses in Singapore, for which
the acquisition was completed at the end of April 2013.
However, the segment recorded a drop of 29.4% in profit
from HK$43,416,000 last year to HK$30,646,000 for the
Year due to the decrease in fair value gains of investment
properties to HK$14,700,000 (2014: HK$29,141,000).
Nevertheless, the Group achieved a 100% occupancy rate
with an average annual rental yield of 3.2% (2014: 3.0%)

for its investment properties in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Securities Trading

The Group's securities portfolio mainly consists of blue
chips in the Hong Kong and Singapore stock markets, which
have provided steady growth to its portfolio. The segment
delivered a turnaround result from last year's loss of
HK$21,752,000 to this Year's profit of HK$61,714,000. The
improvement of this segment results was mainly due to the
upswing of the Asian stock market boosted by the positive

investment sentiment.

Discontinued Operation — Hotel Operations

During the Year, revenue of hotel operations in Batam
Resort decreased to HK$6,083,000 (Year ended 31 March
2014: HK$20,073,000). Due to the disposal of the Group's
entire interests in Batam Resort on 31 July 2014, only four
months’ performance was reflected in the reporting period.
After the completion of the disposal, the loss of hotel
operations fell to HK$3,400,000 (Year ended 31 March
2014: HK$7,344,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite the Group's effort to keep the occupancy rate of
the hotel rooms stable, its hotel operations underperformed
due to keen competition amongst peers. Furthermore,
the increase in minimum wage, salary and other related

expenses also put pressure on the hotel operating cost.

In view of its unsatisfactory performance, the Board
considered that the disposal of its loss-making investment
would provide the Group with an exit opportunity
and additional working capital for other profit making
businesses. Therefore, on 23 May 2014, the Group entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with a
connected person to dispose of its entire interests in Batam
Resort at a consideration of HK$10,000,000. The disposal,
which constituted a discloseable and connected transaction,
was approved by the independent shareholders in the
Company's special general meeting on 4 July 2014. The
disposal was completed on 31 July 2014 and a gain on the
disposal of HK$20,344,000 was recorded by the Group,
after deducting the disposal expenses of HK$943,000.
For details, please refer to the announcement and circular
of the Company dated 23 May 2014 and 16 June 2014,

respectively.

Upon completion of the disposal on 31 July 2014, the
hotel operations were classified as discontinued operation

of the Group during the year under review.

DISSOLUTION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, certain immaterial subsidiaries of the
Group were dissolved and the one-off non-cash gain of
HK$19,467,000 arising from release of exchange reserve

was recognised.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEST R 5T

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 March 2015, the Company had outstanding
guarantees of HK$205,105,000 (2014: HK$177,445,000)
given to banks to secure general credit facilities for certain
subsidiaries. Credit facilities in an aggregate amount of
HK$29,648,000 (2014: HK$92,214,000) had been utilised
by the subsidiaries from such guarantees at the end of the
reporting period.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As of 31 March 2015,
and building and investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$484,822,000 (2014:
HK$481,998,000), trade receivables with a carrying
amount of HK$365,000 (2014: HK$140,000) and equity
investments with a carrying value of HK$383,579,000
(2014: HK$449,671,000) were pledged to banks and
securities dealers for loan facilities worth HK$342,540,000
(2014: HK$361,956,000) granted to the Group. As of 31
March 2015, HK$29,648,000 (2014: HK$122,242,000) of
the loan facilities had been utilised by the Group.

some of the Group's land

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2015, the Group had net current assets
of HK$905,648,000 (2014: HK$899,541,000) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company worth
HK$1,455,797,000 (2014: HK$1,429,985,000).

The Group's total indebtedness (representing the
aggregate amount of interest-bearing loans from banks
and securities dealers) was HK$29,648,000 (2014:
HK$122,242,000). All loans were denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Singapore dollar and charged at floating
interest rates. They were secured by mortgages over some
of the Group's properties that have an aggregate net book
value of HK$393,240,000 (2014: HK$481,998,000)
and assignment of some of the Group's trade receivables
(rentals) with a carrying amount of HK$365,000 (2014:
HK$140,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Regarding total indebtedness, HK$6,578,000 (2014:
HK$96,238,000) will be repayable within one year or on
demand, HK$3,132,000 (2014: HK$3,340,000) will be
repayable from the second to fifth years and the remaining
balance of HK$19,938,000 (2014: HK$22,664,000) will be
repayable after five years.

The Group's gearing ratio (total indebtedness divided by
equity attributable to owners of the Company) at the end of
the reporting period was decreased to 0.02 (2014: 0.09).

EXPOSURE TO EQUITY PRICES, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group is exposed to risks arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity investments. The
Group's investments are listed on the stock exchanges of
Hong Kong and Singapore and are valued at quoted market

prices at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are mainly held
predominately in Hong Kong dollar, Singapore dollar and
Renminbi. The Group’s borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar at floating interest
rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in
interest rates relates primarily to its long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has no significant interest rate risk. As
the impact from foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no

hedging against foreign currency exposure is necessary.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEt ST

HUMAN RESOURCES
As of 31 March 2015, the Group had a total of 24 staff

in Hong Kong. Remuneration packages for employees and
directors are structured according to market terms as well
as individual performance and experience. Benefits plans
maintained by the Group include mandatory provident
fund scheme, medical insurance, share option scheme and
discretionary bonuses. As of 31 March 2015, the Group
had 387,440,000 outstanding share options granted to

eligible executives and employees of the Group.
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The Board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices at all times. The Board
believes that good corporate governance helps the
Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and

to enhance the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors of the Company, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code during the year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises

BExg

RAFHAY EFGREBENLEKREN

nine members as follows: T

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman) BEERE (EE)
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman) mBERrL (SEE)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

BB LT (EEFEAE)
mAERX LT

Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRA& B2+
Mr. Yu Wai Man RIEXSEHE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITESE
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok SRR B St A
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth B8 R IE St A&
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al &R AR S &

ARRT2W EMRANES 2B
RERBYFNTESTR/BILAL -EF
ZEEFE (BREFERERZBER)H
PIMAFHREFEIZEIOAZ [ERHE] —
B - BERSTRMEX A8 - AAFE
HEEFAESEYERTHEEED
AR »

The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules. Biographical details of the Directors (including the
relationships among members of the Board) are set out
under the section headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages
33 to 39 of this annual report. In compliance with Code
provision A.1.8, the Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against

its Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment so as to ensure that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Directors have attended various
external seminars and have read materials covering topics
such as business and performance of the Company and

accounting issues.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be
separate. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 2 March 2012, Mr.
Wilson Ng resigned as the Chairman of the Company on
2 March 2012 and on the same day Mr. Ng Wee Keat
was re-designated from the Chief Executive Officer to the
Chairman of the Company. The Company is in the process
of identifying suitable candidate with appropriate experience
to be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and will
make an announcement as soon as a suitable candidate

has been identified.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a specific term of three years and are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years as referred to
the bye-law 87 of the Company where provides that at
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors
of the Company for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his

independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and
to assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board
has established three board committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Audit Committee (collectively the “Committees”)
with clearly-defined written terms of references. The Board
delegated the authority to the Committees and provided
the Committees with sufficient resources to perform
their duties. Upon reasonable request, they are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s

expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
members, including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Wee Keat and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau
Ming. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the

Remuneration Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all directors’
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure

for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's

corporate goals and objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive directors;

4. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

5. to review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is

otherwise fair and not excessive;

6. to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate; and

7. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

1. to determine the remuneration of the Directors; and

2. to review the remuneration policy of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five
members, including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Wee Keat and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau
Ming. Mr. Ng Wee Keat is the chairman of the Nomination

Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination

Committee are:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement

the Company's corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr.
Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. One of
the independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under
the Listing Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and to

handle any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditors’

independence and objectivity;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging external

auditors to supply non-audit services;
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FiHtLEEEERERAA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

4. to monitor the integrity of the Company’'s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them;

5. to review the Group's financial controls, internal control

and risk management systems;

6. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

7. to review the external auditors’ management letters
and to ensure the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external auditors’

management letter.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year:

1. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 and to

recommend them to the Board for approval;

2. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended
30 September 2014 and to recommend them to the

Board for approval; and

3. to review internal control system of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEGRE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZEESHREHFETLE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the meetings of RAFER @ SEEHE
the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination B& -IEZZEE& « Fi%
Committee, the Audit Committee and the general BYEAE > HELDHEEHIIMOT

meeting(s) during the year is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

e/ BrEany

Annual Special

Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit ~ General  General

Directors Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Meeting ~ Meeting

RRBE REEH

Bz Ezg FMzERE REZEE ENZRE -4 -4

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BRELE 4/4 22 1/1 - 1/1 0/1

Ms. Sio lon Kuan FEEat 3/4 - - - 0/1 0/1

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda ERFLL 2/4 - - - 11 0/1

Ms. Lilian Ng EREXT 2/4 - - - 1/1 0/1

Ms. Chen Ka Chee BikEat 2/4 - - - 11 11

Mr. Yu Wai Man REXLE 4/4 22 1/1 - 11 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTEES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok REREE 4/4 2/2 1/1 22 1/1 0/1

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BAREE 4/4 22 11 2/2 0/1 11

Mr. Ho Yau Ming RARE 4/4 22 1/1 22 1/1 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions as required under the CG
Code:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company's auditors, Ernst & Young for audit and non-audit

services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Audit services 1,218,000
Non-audit services 370,000
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company's

performance, position and prospects.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2015.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 51 to

53 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Group's assets. During the year
under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management

functions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Yi, is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. During the year, Ms. Ng has taken no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

The Company's corporate website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk)
provides postal address, email address, fax number and
telephone number by which shareholders of the Company
may at any time address their concerns or enquires to the
Board.

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as
a director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings
are set out in the Corporate Governance section of the

Company's corporate website.

Annual Report 2015 #£3§

B R AE R

BERRFBIXRE

BIEARRNRZ ARIMMANESSE HIREEE
KEARETIIPR T2 —HRAEH
ERA(MBEZBRAMEBEEARANE X
SREEF) MRE - AR BEER
MAARESEAWERLERE R Z
KEEGRARREIAE - UNEREFH
ERPIEANEMSE  BZREEARE
EZRERERNOMEANEIT - MEES
EEZHBEF -+ —BRN  REBHZ
g% AEEERATTEITREERE
1981 FRBEYE74)E BT -

MESSREER

A F 2 A E) AL (http://mww.ncgrp.com.hk)
REARARFRRAIBERAMEFSIREER
SEEIESNE R EF MY - B - FE
SRS K B RE SRS o

ERRASRHUER
() EBERXAEBRRARG LERLARAE
EZRF BRARBZABRIEA

ZEERED -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEGRE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued) BREER (&)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings ERREARESEREER (&)
(continued)
(i) The procedures for putting forward proposals at

(i) ERRASRLEZNEFDOT :

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

€))

(®)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company may submit
a written requisition to propose resolution(s)
through requisition of an extraordinary general

meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth of the voting rights or not less than
100 shareholders of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) at the

next annual general meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

(@

(b)

©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as they appear in the Company's

share register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and

(@) BAEERRAFEBHBEAAS DR
Tz —HRRAIEXE@E
KoOBBBERBITRRENIAS

RERER -
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
(continued)
(i) The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows: (continued)

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must (continued)

(e) be deposited at the registered office of the
Company with a copy to the Company's head
office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 3808, 38th Floor, West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the board
of directors of the Company or the Company

Secretary of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the shareholders
of the Company receive accurate, clear, comprehensive
and timely information of the Group by the publication
of interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars on the Company's corporate website

(http://www.ncgrp.com.hk).

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there was no
change in the Company's constitutional documents, and
these documents are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.
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The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present
their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries comprise the provision of
cruise ship charter services, property investments and
securities trading. On 31 July 2014, the Group ceased to
engage in hotel operations, as a result of the disposal of
its entire equity interests in Smarter Cash Assets Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”). Other than
this development, there were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 54 to
220.

An interim dividend of HKO.20 cent per ordinary share was
paid on 30 December 2014. The Directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HKO.55 cent per ordinary
share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register
of members on 3 September 2015. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the

statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, are set
out on pages 221 and 222. This summary does not form

part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment properties of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
financial statements, respectively. Further details of the
Group's investment properties are set out on pages 223
and 224.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 26 and

27 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities

during the year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 28(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$769,529,000, of which
HK$31,792,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for
the year.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2015 may

be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2015 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances, as

prescribed by Section 54 thereof.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable
to the five largest customers accounted for 48% of the
Group's total sales, which include fair value gains on
securities in aggregate of HK$46,046,000 for the year.
The aggregate sales attributable to the largest customer
accounted for 43% of the Group’s total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 5% of the total purchases for the year and purchases

from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 2%.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (continued)

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers

mentioned above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

In accordance with the Company's bye-laws 87(1) and
87(2), Mr. Yu Wai Man, Mr. Ho Yau Ming and Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

The Company has received from each of the three current
independent non-executive directors (namely Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau
Ming) an annual confirmation of independence and
as at the date of this report still considers them to be

independent.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

(@) Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and
the Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 38. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company in April 2004.
Mr. Ng was re-designated from the chief executive
officer to the chairman of the Company in March
2012. Mr. Ng also holds directorship in various
members of the Group since January 2003. Mr. Ng
graduated from Indiana University with a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Ng worked in a ship management
company where he was responsible for re-engineering
the company’s structure as well as ensuring the daily
operations of that company in a smooth and efficient
way. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang Worldwide Holding
Limited (“HWHL"), the immediate holding company
of New Century Investment Pacific Limited (“NCIPL"),
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
In addition, Mr. Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr. Ng is a
younger brother of Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder brother
of Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Mr. Ng is also a cousin
of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive directors
of the Company. Mr. Ng is a son of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee of
a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest
in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 48. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004.
Ms. Sio also holds directorship in various members of
the Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 20
years of extensive management experience in various
fields including retailing, property investments, tourism
and entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition,
Ms. Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 37. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004.
Ms. Ng also holds directorship in various members
of the Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng brings
to the Group experience in the fields of real estate
management, human resource management and retail
operations. Ms. Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Arts
degree majoring in Telecommunications and a minor
in Computer Science from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is
a younger sister of Ms. Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat.
Ms. Ng is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They
are all executive directors of the Company. Ms. Ng is
a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the
settlor and the trustee of a discretionary trust which
holds the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited,
the ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms.
Ng did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng

Aged 41. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng also holds directorship
in various members of the Group since September
2002. Ms. Ng graduated from San Francisco State
University with a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration. Ms. Ng has extensive experience in
hotel management. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. Ng was a finance and operation director of a
conglomerate with businesses in tour industry and
cruise liner management as well as hotel and property
management in Southeast Asia. Ms. Ng is a director
of NCIPL, which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Ng is the elder sister of Mr. Ng Wee
Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Ms. Ng is also a
cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive
directors of the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr.
Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the
trustee of a discretionary trust which holds the entire
interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the

last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Aged 50. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an
executive director in May 2000. Ms. Chen also holds
directorship in various members of the Group since
August 2000. Ms. Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce
degree and is an associate member of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen
has over 27 years of experience in the accounting
field, including 4 years in auditing. Ms. Chen is a
cousin of Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
and Ms. Lilian Ng. They are all executive directors of
the Company. Ms. Chen is a niece of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee of
a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest
in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Chen did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 50. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August
1997 and was appointed as an executive director
of the Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu also holds
directorship in various members of the Group since
September 1997. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has over 30 years of experience in the accounting
field, including 3 years in external audit and 2 years
in internal audit. Mr. Yu has over 22 years of financial
experience in companies listed both in Hong Kong
and the United Kingdom. Mr. Yu did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 50. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in June 2012
and was appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee in
September 2012. Mr. Cheung is also the member of
the Nomination Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated
from Edith Cowan University of Australia and received
his postgraduate diploma of financial management
from the University of London. Since returning to Hong
Kong in 1990, he has been extending international
opportunities for Chinese large state-owned and
privately-owned enterprises. Mr. Cheung is a Practising
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Practising
Accountant of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax Adviser of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung is the
director of Global CPA (HK) Limited (Representative
of Integra International) and has extensive experience
in mergers and acquisitions and the tax aspect. Mr.
Cheung oversees the day-to-day running of the
finance function and is directly responsible for financial
reporting, corporate governance, tax and corporate
finance for multi-national companies including state-
owned enterprises and listed enterprises. Mr. Cheung
also has extensive international accounting experience
and has worked in CPA firms in the US and Australia.
Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the Small
and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
International Committee and a Certified Business
Intermediary of the International Business Brokers
Association. Currently, Mr. Cheung is a member of
a number of committees including the Professional
Service Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung
did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other
positions with the Company or other members of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 68. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003. Mr.
Kwan is also the member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over
34 years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship
in other listed public companies in the last three years
and any other positions with the Company or other

members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 64. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003.
Mr. Ho is also the member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Ho holds a Master degree in Finance
from the University of Leicester in England and is
a fellow member of the Institute of Leadership and
Management in the United Kingdom. Mr. Ho had
worked in the banking industry for over 27 years in
official and senior executive positions including The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years and any other positions with the Company

or other members of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang,
Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng, being beneficial shareholders
of Castletop Investments Limited, were interested in a
transaction for the sale of the Disposal Group. Further
details of the transaction undertaken in connection
therewith are included in note 29 to the financial

statements.

Save as disclosed above, no director nor a connected
entity of a director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the

year.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"))
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as follows:
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Directors

Ex
Mr. Ng Wee Keat

"EELE

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

WEBLL

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
BEFEMLL

Ms. Lilian Ng
BAELL

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

REELt

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE

Directly
beneficially

owned

EERRH#ER

30,030,000

52,000,000

26,250,000

26,250,000

8,400,000

3,360,000

Through
controlled
corporation
REEATF

304,640,000
(note 2)
(PaE2)

304,640,000
(note 2)
GEPY

304,640,000
(note 2)
(P3E2)

304,640,000
(note 2)
(PH3E2)
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EERBESTHRAEBRERGRME
BRGzER R RE (&)

e

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest
FEZERYE BHREZME

Beneficiary

of a trust

FAZXHEA

3,455,753,691
(note 3)
(B 7E3)

3,455,753,691
(note 3)
(PR 5E3)

3,455,753,691
(note 3)
(P3E3)

3,455,753,691
(note 3)
(PH3E3)

RAT

Rl

BB ZTR

Total

st

3,790,423,691

3,812,393,691

3,786,643,691

3,786,643,691

8,400,000

3,360,000
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Percentage of the
Company's issued
share capital
HARARE BT
BAZBED

65.57

65.95

65.51

65.51

0.15

0.06
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

EERBETRAERKRMOKAE
ARGz ESRRE (&)

RARBIEREZ TR

Number of share options

Directors directly beneficially owned
== EREREA2BREHE
Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEGEE 66,000,000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan mEBAZ L 56,000,000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EBRMLL 53,000,000
Ms. Lilian Ng EAREXL L 53,000,000
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR % B 22 + 41,000,000
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 44,000,000

313,000,000

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2015, the total number of issued shares of

the Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. 304,640,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being
a charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng
Wee Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and

Ms. Lilian Ng are members and members of its council of

management.

3. 3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited which is ultimately owned by Huang Group
(BVI) Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms.

Lilian Ng are the discretionary beneficiaries.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as at 31
March 2015, other than the interests of the directors of the
Company as disclosed above, the following interests of 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Shareholders Notes
B’R=R B 51
New Century Investment Pacific Limited 2,4
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited 2
Huang Group (BVI) Limited 2,3
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng 3,4
=R LA

New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited 4

it (ER)BREESARAA

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

EERBETHRAERKRMO KA
ARG EE N XA (&)

BREXHBEEEIN R_T—HF=H
=t—H ARAEFLRESTHRAER
AR B S AT A AR R B 2 B £ 2k AR
R R A RIBE 5 R BB &G 5352
BABR Z EmEOAR » RIEFE TR
ZHMEMBAME AR RTA] NIRRTz sk

NN
B e

FERRRHEMATARKRSG RE
AR z2EERAXE

MARBERMEEMM RZT—HF=
A=1+—8 KBREXHBEEARFESRZ
I IEARRR 2 EITRAS%WHEIA £
Z NoER D IRER S M B GRPIF336
R ERARRRART 2 EmECM :

RARBEBRZTFAE
Number of  Percentage of the
ordinary Company’s issued
shares held share capital
NS &y
FrEEEREE BABDH
3,455,753,691 59.78
3,455,753,691 59.78
3,455,753,691 59.78
4,030,061,691 69.72
304,640,000 5.27
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1.

As at 31 March 2015, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 5,780,368,705.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company
of New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,455,753,691 shares.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 304,640,000 shares were held by New
Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited while 269,668,000
shares were held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng is one of the members of New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng was deemed to be interested in a total of
4,030,061,691 shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation
Limited is a company limited by guarantee being a charitable

institution of public character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no

person (other than the directors or chief executive of

the Company) who was recorded in the register of the

Company had interests or short positions in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company which would be required

to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
4 September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) and termination of the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 23 September 2002
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”). Outstanding share
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior
to the termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Further
details of the 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2002
Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the

financial statements.

(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2002
Share Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2014 the year 2015

R-Z-DF RER  R-B-IF
SEERZARA mA-H %% =A=t-AH
Directors
Ez
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
ARAERE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
BEELL
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 35,000,000 - 35,000,000

REMLL

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE
BB IR ST &
KT =FAAMARTZ AR AR
BEARE - BRRERDBBARS —
E%%%%%%G:?—:E%%%%
B EREARTR-BT-FANA

:+:E%%Z%k%ﬁﬂ@ TE-F
RERHERTE]) - IRIB-_TT —FBERER
) RERIERIRBE ST _FBREE
13 T ) AR 7T 150 2 B A S e 4B B S ]
TIIE - B —_FT——_FRERESE N
TSE_FEREFEZE-TFT WE
RIS R M 527 -

EHERETE
EW @nggfiﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁ

(@) —B®=

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of

share options share options  share options*

BRE BhRE BhRE

RuRH TEH TRE"

HKS per share

BRAT

21-01-2011 21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“f——% C"E——4%-f-+-HZ
-A=t+-H “E--F-A-1H

21-01-2011 21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“F-—% C—F-—f-A-t-RE
-A-t-H “Z--%-A_1H

21-01-2011 21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 02100
“F-f% ZE--%-f-f-BE
-A-t-H “F-f-f-1H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Name or category

of participant

SRELZAEA

Directors (continued)

E2(8)
Ms. Lilian Ng
RFEXL

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BBzt

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE

Other employees
HitlEE

In aggregate

A
A

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or

Number of share options

BREZA
At Lapsed At
1 April during 31 March
2014 the year 2015
RZB-m% RER  RIB-1F
mA-A %% =B=t-H
35,000,000 - 35,000,000
25,000,000 - 25,000,000
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
213,000,000 - 213,000,000
40,920,000 (1,080,000 39,840,000
253,920,000 (1,080,000 252,840,000

other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 15
April 2015, 800,000 share options with an exercise
price of HK$0.2100 per share of other employees

lapsed.
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B BRRE ST B (&)
() —EEB—FBREHE (E)

Date of

grant of
share options
BRE
REAH

21-01-2011
“E——F
-A-f+-H

21-01-2011
%

—AZt-A

21-01-2011
—2——F

—A=t-H

21012011
2%

—AZt-A

*

Exercise
period of
share options
BRE
TR

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021

ZF-—%-AZt-RE
ZE--F-AZ1H
21-01-2011 t0 20-01-2021
“2-——%-fA-f-RH%
“Z--F-AZ+H
21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
“2-——%-A-+-HE
“E--F-AZ+H

21-01-2011 t0 20-01-2021
“F——%-fA-1+-R%
“2--%-A-+H

Exercise

price of
share options*
BRE
TEE

HK$ per share
BRET

0.2100

0.2100

0.2100

0.2100

B AR 2 77 (B P B8 R o8 B 4741
B SR A RIRAR 2 E AR L2 B T
FIAME -

WEHERE R _ZE—RAFNWA+H
A AR TFHMEE ZBRES -
800,000 1T £ {8 /& & 1%0.2100/ 7T
2 IBIR R o



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2012

Share Option Scheme during the year:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

fE IR T & ()
(b) =E——FEKRETE

FRN - REBE-_Z-_FHERETE
B R 7T 8 2 A v B B an

Number of share options
BRELR
At Lapsed Exercised At
Name or category 1 April during during 31 March
of participant 2014 the year the year 2015
R-2-DF RER RER R-%-1f
SRERZIRH mA-H b3 fi ZA=t-A
Directors
£
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
BRELE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 21,000,000 - (10,000,000) 11,000,000
Ejairen
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
] bes
s Lilian Ng 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
EHE Nt
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 16,000,000 - - 16,000,000
RiEgxt
Mr. Yu Wai Man 16,000,000 - - 16,000,000
RENEE
110,000,000 - (10,000,000) 100,000,000

o

Date of

grant of
share options
REE
RILEH

03-09-2013

nA=A

03-09-2013

-F_=
Z—=
- =

AA=EH

03-09-2013
“5-=F
NEZH

03-09-2013

—F_—
E—=
—-< -

NA=R

03-09-2013

-F_=
T—=
- =

AA=EH

03-09-2013
“5-=F
NEZH

Exercise
period of
share options
BhE
18

03-09-2013 t0 02-09-2023
“E-=FNAZHE
“ECZENACH

03-09-2013 t0 02-09-2023
“E-ZENAZHE
“E-ZEnRZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZEfA=RZ
“E-CENACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZFNAZHE
“ToCENRCH

03-09-2013 t0 02-09-2023
“E-ZENAZRE
“E-ZEnRZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZEfA=RZ
“ToCENRCH

Exercise

price of
share options*
kR
@

HKS per share
ShET

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BEBIRFESTE (8)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) —=E——FHERETE (&)
Number of share options
BREYE
At Lapsed Exercised At Date of Exercise Exercise
Name or category 1 April during during 31 March grant of period of price of
of participant 2014 the year the year 2015 share options share options ~ share options*
R-g-RE RER RER RZ2-1% BRE BRE ERE
SREERARN mA-H 3 X4 ZAZ1-H RuAH i e
HKS per share
BRET
Other employees
HttfER
In aggregate 37,800,000 (600,000) (2,600,000) 34600000  03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
Ak -k “E-ZENAZRE
NA=R “RZZENAZH
Total 147,800,000 (600,000) (12,600,000) 134,600,000
Az
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to * o BEARAE 2 AT B AT A R AR S B 1T AT
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or B SRR FIRRAS 2 EoAth $R L B
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. T LAFHEE -
**  The weighted average closing price of the Company's sk RN T AR A BRI EE RS AE 1T (E B HA AT
shares immediately before the exercise dates of the T INREF W T (B A S 80,1584
share options was HK$0.1584 per share. IT o

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were & | X BT # 58 & 41 - A 7K 5 8 1 (E (0] B
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of R @ AR EEBRFES B 2 BB AKRKF
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of 2 1} S J& 5% T (E{a] 4 F1) 0 HL g 35 Uk B8 A<
the directors or their respective spouses or minor children, R BIPED S EREEMER G - KB 1T71E
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the {EABAE#ER  AQF) - EER AT E
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or  {E{a] ff B A &) 2k [7] Z M B A &) 7R3 JEE (A
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the — ZHEHEF —7 » BZELHF = FER
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.  {Ef] Efth 3k A B2 > HRAKER) -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION
During the year, the Company and the Group had the

following connected transaction, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

On 23 May 2014, Goodassist Management Limited (the
“Vendor"), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Castletop
Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”) to dispose of its
entire equity interests in Smarter Cash Assets Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”) for a consideration of
HK$10,000,000.

The Purchaser is a wholly owned subsidiary of Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, a substantial shareholder and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the disposal
constituted a connected transaction of the Company.
According to the applicable percentage ratios, the disposal
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company. Such
transaction was subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The disposal was approved by the independent
shareholders in the Company’s special general meeting on
4 July 2014 and the disposal was completed on 31 July
2014. Therefore, the Group ceased to have any equity

interests in the Disposal Group on the same date.

The net proceeds from the disposal was approximately
HK$9,057,000, after disposal expenses of HK$943,000.
Further details of the disposal are included in note 29 to

the financial statements.
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Ry HETHBREBIAES LHHR
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R-E—NERA-+=0 " AQFZ
Bff /& ‘2 FlGoodassist Management Limited
(I'# 77 ]) BaCastletop Investments Limited
(TERDIAEGRHEEE R WEEH
A Smarter Cash Assets Limited &2 £ [} /& 2
AI([HEEE]) 22k AER - BEARK
{8 /$10,000,000/8 7T °

B 5 A x ZMRRFEHuang Group (BVI)
Limitedz 2 & W B AT - FTARE LR
AIE+HAE - RARRIZHAEAL -
b HEFEBKARR -HBERS -
BREABSOLLE  HEFEEKAQT]
—HATEENOXR S - BB FTWHREIE
THAE - EAXSAEBFERBR 2
ERBREREDRE o

HEFEEKEARAR T —HF+
AMBRTZRREFR RS ST
Rt MEESFEER _T—HFLAH
=t—HxEK - Bt > AEEHFBEES
BHEAHEEE 2N EE -

& F 18 2 AT 15 IR F ¥ 4 /29,057,000
BT (KB B & B 943,000 Tig) °
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company's total number of issued shares

was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2015
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To the shareholders of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 54 to 220, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RBETR &

BHELEETEERLA
ZERR
(REFRZEZME L ZBERAA)

KRB EZERFES4BE220E Fitt 40 %
EEEBRAA(EQAR]D) REKBER
Al (B AIESE]) WiraMBImE - It
PBHREPEE_T—RAF=A=+—808
REPMBARARMAR MBI R FREEE
ZAILEFEMNGEEER  SEe2EKE
R IRERREHRE HFERHeRER
AR FEBETEEMEAMM TREER -

EERGEEMBHRRARENEE

ERREFAAAERBERBSMASTH
M EBYHHRELENMEZ QBRI Z
RERERHNGEATBEREK  USHEEH
BRREHEEMAFHRBR - MEEH
RO R E M IBRRAT S ED R AR
#l - AR A WIS R N R EEE
B 3R 1 E B B A SE AR BRO -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BIRETR &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RBETR &

OPINION faiﬁ

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a IR A ZEEAUBBRERCOBESS
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company ,BM‘%#&%A%E\JE RS- NI RIS
and of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group's BER -_T—HAF=ZA=+—HWHIH KRR
financial performance and cash flows for the year then REZEZBIFFEMNPFFERIBMIR SR
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting & @ W R EB A EHI 2 WEREZ
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance — Z#R#l o

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young ZXKEFHRIE KA
Certified Public Accountants HEZETAT

22/F, CITIC Tower =B

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central FRIRANTEE 195

Hong Kong h{E KE221&

26 June 2015 —ZE—RERAZTRHA
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
HEHEEmER

Year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_T—AF=-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E—HF —ET—mF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$ 000
B 5E FET FAET
(Restated)
(&e&E75)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BESEER
REVENUE WA 5 147,911 67,797
Cost of services provided FIT 42 £t Bl 75 A AN (12,517) (11,658)
Gross profit EF 135,394 56,139
Other income and gains H b U A B U 2= 5 4,925 3,028
Administrative expenses ITEHHAX (25,433) (31,799)
Foreign exchange differences, net [&E ¥ =% - JF58 (10,423) (2,548)
Fair value losses on cruise ships B & 2 A (E{EEE (39,962) (42)
Fair value gains on investment KEMEZ RNFEE
properties I &= 15 14,700 29,141
Finance costs &b & K A 7 (1,066) (1,297)
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries ## 81Kt B A & 49 Y =5 19,467 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM HFEREEBEEN
CONTINUING OPERATIONS R B4 A % R 6 97,602 52,622
Income tax expense Frisii & /A 9 (1,705) (285)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM AEERBERKEER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS EERREF 95,897 52,337
DISCONTINUED OPERATION CRIEEEETR
Loss for the year from a AEEZE-HERELE
discontinued operation HEBEEMEE 11 (3,400) (7,344)
Gain on disposal of a HE-—BERIEES
discontinued operation E U= 29 20,344 —
16,944 (7,344)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A FEEF 112,841 44,993
Attributable to: AT AL EAG
Owners of the Company RATHEB A 98,830 29,907
Non-controlling interests IEIE PR = 14,011 15,086
112,841 44 993
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

HEHEERE)

Year ended 31 March 2015
BHE_ZT-—RAF=A=+—HIFEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —FTHNF
Note (Restated)
B E (&&=E=5))
EARNINGS PER SHARE ARAFEBER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY  BR#ERHHE A
EQUITY HOLDERS OF G S RAB R
THE COMPANY 13
Basic R
— For profit for the year — N [E 5 HK1.71 cents®{l  HKO0.52 cent L
— For profit from continuing —REREER
operations EE HE Y Vi A HK1.39 cents®{l  HKO0.58 cent/& il
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — REFEE HK1.71 cents#®1lL  HKO0.52 cent 1l
— For profit from continuing —REKEE
operations sy obindil HK1.39 cents# 1l HKO0.58 cent#ll
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SFEEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_T—AF=-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mmF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERR 112,841 44,993
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit2E W=
Other comprehensive income to be A1 BRI S E 5T
reclassified to profit or loss in DEEEED
subsequent periods: Hfb2mEUaE
Release of exchange reserve upon B 1 AR B /BB A B R [T 4%
dissolution of subsidiaries PE 35 76 18 (19,467) -
Release of exchange reserve upon RHE—EERIEKE
disposal of a discontinued operation TR O] BB N R (7,322) -
Exchange differences on translation BB RIS B TS
of foreign operations EAEMEN Z58 (8,841) 8,234
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEHM
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 2HEUWE - HBBRBR (35,630) 8,234
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME XEEZME
FOR THE YEAR U 25 48 KR 77,211 53,227
Attributable to: LATR AT &1k -
Owners of the Company KABEA A 61,378 29,128
Non-controlling interests IE Pk A = 15,833 24,099
77,211 53,227
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBRAER

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E2-AHF —F—mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
B 5 FHET F&ET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MR 14 91,411 102,795
Investment properties "EYE 15 630,540 625,300
Prepaid land premiums TEATHL(E 16 - 312
Available-for-sale investment AIIEE 2 E 780 780
Total non-current assets EMEEERT 722,731 729,187
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE - 1,193
Prepaid land premiums FET B 16 - 469
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 18 69,910 9,086
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE - a2k
other receivables H 4th e W BR 3K 19 5,425 5,230
Equity investments at fair FERBEmERATEER
value through profit or loss PIRR Z IR E 20 383,579 449,671
Due from a related company FE W B8 B A R FRIE 34(b) - 174
Cash and cash equivalents BReMReEEY 21 513,626 570,993
Total current assets ME)EE R 972,540 1,036,816
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to a related company FE 1~ BA B A RSB 34(b) 12 -
Derivative financial instruments PTE2mT A 23 4,408 3,548
Interest-bearing bank and FHRRITR
other borrowings H b &R 24 6,578 96,238
Trade payables, accruals, JERTE ZERK
other payables and FESTFRIE - H b FE AT
deposits received R kEWizs 22 54,710 35,659
Tax payable J& S I8 1,184 1,830
Total current liabilities MBI B E4AEE 66,892 137,275
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 905,648 899,541
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT  # & E R K &
LIABILITIES afE 1,628,379 1,628,728
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

FEMBIRRER (&)
31 March 2015
—E—RF=-A=+—H
2015 2014
—ZE—-HF —E—mEF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$ 000
B 5 FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B R1TE R 24 23,070 26,004
Loans advanced from REEM B R A
non-controlling shareholders 2 IEPERRAR R
of the Group's subsidiaries BT 2B 34(d) 131,823 184,525
Deposits received B Wiz e 22 2,139 3,249
Deferred tax liabilities BIETHIERE 25 1,847 1,299
Total non-current liabilities FEnBBEMBRE 158,879 215,077
Net assets BEEFR 1,469,500 1,413,651
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners ENREE A
of the Company FEfh =
Issued capital BB ITRR AR 26 14,451 14,419
Reserves Gk 28(a) 1,409,554 1,389,611
Proposed final dividend EEORHEAR B 12 31,792 25,955
1,455,797 1,429,985
Non-controlling interests FEERAE S 13,703 (16,334)
Total equity RS AR R 1,469,500 1,413,651
Ng Wee Keat Sio lon Kuan
EEA o
Chairman Deputy Chairman
F/E Bl F/Z
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GFEEREERE

Year ended 31 March 2015

BHE_ZT-—RAF=A=+—HIFEE

Attrbutebl to owners of he Company

RLIREAEE
Share Share Propased Hon-
lsted  premitm otion~ Contibuted ~ Bichange  Retened finel tontoling Tt
aptdl - account Tesenle surplus fesenle pofts  diidend Tl inferests g uitky
Baf byl ke L &} ke g #eh %

B iRk i i i m KERe & §it
Nobs MO HSOD  HGOW MO0 HSO0  HSTO SR HEOD MG HOW
Mt TRt TR TRt TR TRt TR TR

i1 hpil 2013 14417 32364 17319 162567 24980 89,779 602 1446068 (d0385) 1405683

Prftforthe v - - - - - 19907 - 29907 15086 14593
Othercomprensie income
forthe e
xchang e iferenes on tnslton
offoregnopertons () - - (1m9) 9013 8234
Totel comprefensive inome
forthe year - - (m) 29907 - 19128 24099 B
Diidends paidto norcontolng
shareholdes - - - - - - - - (%) (%)
Final 2013 dividend dedred - - - - - - (34600 (34600 - (34600)
e of shaes 2% i 146 () - - - - 125 - 123
Equitpseted shee option
aangements 7 - - 6,269 - - - - 6,569 - 6,769
Transer of shate ofion esene
pon forfeure of shae opfions - - (183 - - 163 - - - -
e 2014 icend n - - - - =) <) =)
Proposed firel 2014 didend 1l - - - - - (25955) 25,95 - - -
131 Mach 2014 and HZ5-TEZR=1-BR
at 1 Aprl 2014 HZ5-IEMA-A 14419 32,530 25100 162,387 101 826593 595 14995 (16338) 1413651
Prfit for the year 9,830 - 9830 14011 112801
Oter comprhense ncome
forthe yer
Relase of exchange fesene pon
dsoltion of subsiceres (19461) - - (1947) - (1947)
Release of exchange esene tpon
disosal o 3 discontnued operaion b - - - - (13 - - (131) - (13)
Exchang e ferences on fiansaion
offoregn aperatons (10863) - - (10,663) 180 (8841)
Totel comprefiensive income
forthe year = = (3745) 96,830 = 61378 15833 i

Diidends paid o norcontoling
shereflders
Finel 2014 dhidend dedred
fste ofshees
Tranfer ofshee apon esene

- S )
: : . : . S ) - (%)
i D () - - - - - W

ponforfefure ofshee apions )] - - m - - - -
Dissluion of subsidaes - - - - - - - - (154) (154)
Disposel ofsbsires pi - - - - - - - - 54407 54407
e 2015 iicend n - - - - - () - () - ()
Proposed fnl 2015 dvidend 1 - - - - - (e 3 - - -
A 31 March 2015 HoE-1Ezf=1-R 14451 354993° B 1657 (1351 ser 390 14579 15105 1469500

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * W EFEBEeREREGS PR RKR P L
of HK$1,409,554,000 (2014: HK$1,389,611,000) in the & FE151,409,554,0008 7T (— & — PO 4F -
consolidated statement of financial position. 1,389,611,000/87T) °
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GZERERER
Year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_T—AF=-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
ZE-AF —meF
Notes HK$"000 HK$'000
ik THER TAET
(Restated)
(& =51)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING Ed Py AN
ACTIVITIES wE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BREADEF (B8)
From continuing operations REFBEREER 97,602 52,622
From a discontinued operation RE-HERIEREEH 16,944 (7,344)
Adjustments for: HTIIEEHE
Finance costs BB A 7 1,066 1,297
Bank interest income RITH S WA (3,827) (2,604)
Dividend income fr 2 WA 5 (16,561) (15,118)
Gain on disposal of a discontinued HE-BERREEEER
operation ol 11 (20,344) -
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries i C I NGOl 6 (19,467) -
Depreciation nE 14 14,447 14,200
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums AT (B % 5 16 149 482
Fair value losses/(gains) on equity BEBEERBERBRRAYT
investments at fair value through BENE RERE AT
profit or loss — held for trading, net BEEBR/ (Kx) 38 5 (46,046) 33,300
Fair value losses on derivative TEeMIAATEE
financial instruments B8 5,23 860 3,548
Equity-settled share option expense NEGHEENEREERR - 6,569
Fair value gains on investment properties % &M E 7 A FEERE 15 (14,700) (29,141)
Impairment of items of property, ME  BERZHEER
plant and equipment ZRE 14 - 1,235
Deficit on revaluation of cruise ships BmEhEL 14 39,962 42
50,085 59,088
Increase in inventories FEZEM - (84)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables — EMB SERF 2R/ (3810) (64,277) 42,469
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BRNHE  ReREM
deposits and other receivables FEW@EHZHQ/U?JH) (195) 11,914
Decrease in equity investments at BERBREATFEERR
fair value through profit or loss ZHﬂETxéﬁZﬂ 2 112,138 6,846
Movement in the balance with LR A B A5 R
a related company 2E (2,033) (265)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, [ERB S - JEEH R
accruals, other payables and deposits HA MRS &EH&Z&LZ
received #wm,/ (g d) 40,091 (431)
Exchange adjustment BE 5 58 2 (532) 1,528
Cash generated from operations KEREEB RS 135,277 121,065
Interest received BUF & 3,827 2,604
Interest paid =ENELRS (1,066) (1,297)
Hong Kong tax paid BREERE (1,733) -
Overseas tax paid BRIEINEIR (64) (586)
Dividends received 2R S 16,561 15,118
Net cash flows from operating activities AL EH 2 HEREFE 152,802 136,904
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
HERERER(E)
Year ended 31 March 2015

HE-_ZT—hF=A=+—HILFE
2015 2014
— T—MF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Pt TERT FHET
(Restated)
(mE5|)
Net cash flows from operating activities RELLETH R REFE 152,802 136,904
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBAE
ACTIVITIES TE
Purchases of items of property, BENE BEX
plant and equipment RiEEE 14 (47,601) (1,574)
Purchases of investment properties EEREME 15 - (95,139)
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits RITES ZM >/ (38 n) 37,691 (86,221)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBD 29 6,529 -
Return of capital to non-controlling pEyEll \§$%
shareholders IR E (154) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities ~ AR EEH 2 HE R (3,535) (182,934)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING Fﬂﬁ;ﬁﬁziﬁﬁ
ACTIVITIES wE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM A FTEHIA 1,930 123
New bank loans %ﬁi_fﬁﬁ é?k 50,000 77,720
New other borrowings i 2t 2R - 30,028
Repayment of bank loans and other BRBITERREM
borrowings B (140,375) (4,809)
Dividends paid BEAKRE (37,496) (51,903)
Dividends paid to non-controlling RENE 22
shareholders Bz BB (40,049) (48)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) &/ (AR)#EEFSH 2 HL
financing activities MmE (165,990) 51,111
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRRESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B/ (hD) B8 (16,723) 5,081
Cash and cash equivalents at NEE ﬂZfEi&
beginning of year BeEED 429,464 424,937
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEERES 2 FE (2,953) (554)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REEAZEER
AT END OF YEAR RESEY 409,788 429,464
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRBESEYZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEOM
Cash and bank balances ReMBIER 21 339,745 373,650
Non-pledged time deposits with original BAKREEmAR
maturity of less than three months R=RAZ
when acquired EEATEHER 70,043 55,814
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe E&REERAFTALE
statement of cash flows ReEMBEEEY 409,788 429,464
Non-pledged time deposits with original 8 A B[R 7€ f& 7 2R
maturity of more than three months BB=A2
when acquired ERFTEHEFR 103,838 41,529
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the 81 %k 5t 2% 79 B i 49
statement of financial position BekReEED 513,626 570,993
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BAFEIR AR
31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

2015 2014
—E—FRF —T—F
Notes HK$' 000 HK$ 000
B 5E THET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEKEHE 14 343 429
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z/E 17 567,510 523,617
Available-for-sale investment AIEEE ZIRE 780 780
Total non-current assets ERBE EMRE 568,633 524,826
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables FEWE SR 18 13,581 53
Prepayments, deposits and ENFIE Eek
other receivables H b fE U B ZX 19 1,215 1,645
Equity investments at fair value BRERERATEE
through profit or loss FIER Z IR E 20 191,243 227,105
Cash and cash equivalents BReEMReEEY 21 385,825 387,740
Total current assets MENEERT 591,864 616,543
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Derivative financial instruments TSR T A 23 2,204 1,774
Interest-bearing other borrowings &8 H fib {& % 24 - 14,439
Due to subsidiaries FEASH P B A B3R 18 17 372,818 395,308
Accruals FEET 518 22 1,495 1,561
Total current liabilities MENBERR 376,517 413,082
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 215,347 203,461
Net assets BEFE 783,980 728,287
EQUITY EE
Issued capital BB TR AN 26 14,451 14,419
Reserves & 18 28(b) 737,737 687,913
Proposed final dividend FEEoAHRE 12 31,792 25,955
Total equity WEwm AR ER 783,980 728,287

Ng Wee Keat
EEA
Chairman

T
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. During the
period from April 2014 to July 2014, the principal
activities of its subsidiaries comprise the provision of
cruise ship charter services, hotel operations, property

investments and securities trading.

On 31 July 2014, the Group completed its disposal
of the entire interests in a subsidiary group which
engaged in hotel operations (the “discontinued
operation”) to a connected party. Since then, the
Group has been principally engaged in cruise ship
charter services, property investments and securities
trading. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements and the comparative figures have been re-
presented to reflect the results of the discontinued

operation separately.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century
Investment Pacific Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. New Century Investment
Pacific Limited is an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of Huang Group (BVI) Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. In the opinion
of the directors, Huang Group (BVI) Limited, which is
beneficially and wholly owned by a discretionary trust,

is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 iR R M 5E
31 March 2015

—E—RF=A=+—H
ATER
AL EEEEERATNARER
EaMAKZI Z2BR AR KRAFZ
=% i ¥ = BR 2 A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda °
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EBRREHEBEERE HEELK
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EEKD 2z —ENBAREENE
E‘B%E%%L}\i c Ut Z 1R - AN
Bz EEXBARHBREERS
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A\ FU} x

A & ANew Century Investment
Pacific Limited (R EE X BF & it
MK 2 2 ~&El) 2 M & A A o New
Century Investment Pacific LimitedJ5
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BEBESEMK Iz AR 2MES
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Group (BVI) LimitedJy AR 5] Z fx 8
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 fRBLE %

64

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
which because the Company has not early adopted
the revised Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, are those of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, cruise ships, equity
investments and derivative financial instruments, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar ("HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2015. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current liability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to

be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted

for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets

or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—2-AF=A=+—H
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22ERETHEREE
DISCLOSURES
7 £2 [ 7 U AN 4 [ B S R 3 B B R

RIATRIEFTER N2k -

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
and new interpretation for the first time for the current

year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities B BREER REEE
HKFRS 12 and F1035% - BAYH
HKAS 27 (2011) BREENZENHER

BRI ERE2TH
(ZZ2——%) (D)
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and BB g ER S35 TREEN
Financial Liabilities SEH)) THEENTIH Y
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and BRI ERE39% I AMHBEEEN
Continuation of Hedge (f&2T) HHEHHEE
Accounting
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies BACE HUEH
REZE®)-
AEEUH

Amendment to HKFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition’ [EEHE(—E-FF FEEANTE
included in Annual FoF-_FER)IN
Improvements FaRHEERBRE
2010-2012 Cycle X Eykif:lcH)

Amendment to HKFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent [FRNE(—E-FF PEEHFIA
included in Annual Consideration in a Business FIE—EER)IN  ERENEE
Improvements Combination' MEEaEANERE
2010-2012 Cycle EREIRMIELT

Amendment to HKFRS 13 Short-term Receivables and [FENE(ZFE—FF  JTHENTIER
included in Annual Payables FoF-—EER)IN ENFE
Improvements MeRaEEnERE
2010-2012 Cycle ERIZ13ROET

Amendment to HKFRS 1 Meaning of Effective HKFRSs [FENE (ZF——F BFHEEAFEE
included in Annual FE-—FER)IN EANEE

Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

! Effective from 1 July 2014

FrERURANBRE
ERE1ROELT

! M- -—MFE A - HlRER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 32,
and the amendment to HKFRS 13 included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, the adoption of the
above revised standards and new interpretation has

had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.

€)

®)

©

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition
of an investment entity to provide an exception
to the consolidation requirement for entities
that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss
rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also
set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The amendments have had no impact on
the Group as the Company does not qualify as an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off" for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32
to settlement systems (such as central clearing
house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not have any offsetting
arrangement.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-
term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts
when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments*
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?
Disclosure Initiative?
Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Amendments to a number
of HKFRSs!

Amendments to a number
of HKFRSs!

Amendments to a number
of HKFRSs?
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

5  Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for
its annual financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the
Group

In addition, the amendments to the Listing Rules
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong relating to
the disclosure of financial information with reference
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ending 31 March 2016. The Group is in
the process of making an assessment of the impact by
these changes.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of
the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39
and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April
2018. The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have an impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. Further
information about the impact will be available nearer
the implementation date of the standard.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will
apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of
total revenue, information about judgements, and
estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2017 and
is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon

adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements in five areas,
including materiality, disaggregation and subtotals,
notes structure, disclosure of accounting policies
and presentation of items of other comprehensive
income arising from equity accounted investments.
The amendments further encourage entities to
apply professional judgement in determining what
information to disclose and how to structure the
disclosure in the financial statements. The Group

expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April 2016.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

230 RMEMREMZERBYME
HwEZEA (F)

Amendments HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue

BERGHERE 165 R BB G ER
2385 (1B B E BB G EAE
1655 R BB G ERIFE385E N A UL
generated from operating business (of which the ARMgE (BEBEF —HHH) %
7% Pt 2E A B 45 775 M 23 B0 18 3 1T 3E 355 48

EREERBZLBENRNEN R
a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used Al o Btk - KIE A B ERE 754 A]
RARETEME - WERREHITE -

MEREI FEREROBERTARFAE
MIZEENEE - BT ER

reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are

asset is part) rather than the economic benefits

that are consumed through the use of the asset. As

to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to

amortise intangible assets. The amendments are to

be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 April
2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-based
method for the calculation of depreciation of its non-

current assets.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Except for those described in
note 2.2, the Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 April 2015. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the

Group.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8,
including a brief description of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic characteristics
used to assess whether the segments are similar.
The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required to be
disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief

operating decision maker.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company's
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties,
derivative financial instruments and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets and investment properties), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or

fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of

the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
value of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the cruise ship revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the
deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the cruise ship revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Medium-term leasehold land Over the lease
and buildings in Hong Kong terms
Medium-term leasehold Over the lease
hotel properties in Indonesia terms
Leasehold improvements Over the lease
terms
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 33'/,%
equipment
20% to 25%
149% to 17%

Motor vehicles

Cruise ships

Drydocking costs represent major inspection and
overhaul costs and are included in cruise ships
and depreciated to reflect the consumption of
benefits, which are to be replaced or restored by the

subsequent drydocking generally every two years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of

the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement

of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gain or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of

profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the

lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFTEETHEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets RERHMCERMEE (B)
(continued)
Subsequent measurement =y
The subsequent measurement of financial assets TREENKREFERTFEI BN
depends on their classification as follows: N
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BBIE RN FEEINEE oS E
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss FEREREATEEIERZ SHEE
include financial assets held for trading and financial BREFEREE ZSRE E N6 HER
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair NETAZERBmIZAFEEYKE
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are ZERMEE -MUEBeRMEEZBEN
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the REFRBALHE M@ B AKIEE
purpose of sale in the near term. H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are FREBERRATEEIIRZSRMEE
carried in the statement of financial position at fair TEWHERAERARFEEBAKR B
value with positive net changes in fair value presented NTEEEEFHENAIES - AFA
as other income and negative net changes in fair value WaERPHEMYA > meRE - Al
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit YABmKRPHBMERAR - RFEEE
or loss. These net fair value changes do not include FEYHTIERREZEEMEENT
any dividends on these financial assets, which are AR E - AEREEE T X[#RUK
recognised in accordance with the policy set out for AN — 82 R ERALR o

“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as REMRBEEGTEANEINENIE
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at B EVIRMEREIETE ABRBREBRIL
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in "i{%{ﬁ’ilﬁﬁz%@ﬁ}zﬁﬂﬁ:?ﬂ%
HKAS 39 are satisfied. WREETCABEBBERIEATEET]

RSB EE -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income in the statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans

and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity
investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in
other expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the

policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets, if management has the ability
and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable

future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-
for-sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment

of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to

the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is

credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses

on these assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a

group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an

investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, deposits received,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and loans
advanced from non-controlling shareholders of the

Group's subsidiaries.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are

taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories, comprising food and beverage for the
hotel operations, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

« when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

« when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

< in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

C)

(®)

©

(d)

(e)

®

®

cruise ship charter service income, on a time
proportion basis over the terms as set out in the

agreements governing such activities;

income from hotel operations, when the services

are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading, on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses, on change in fair value

at the end of the reporting period;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

and

fair value gains or losses on derivative financial
instruments, on change in fair value at the end of

the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the binomial model, further details of

which are given in note 27.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning

and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group's employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the statement of the
financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders

and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are

proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items

are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or

loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at

the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the

future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. The office
premises located in Hong Kong comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for administrative
purposes. As these portions could be sold separately,
the Group accounts for the portion held to earn rentals

separately as investment properties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship chartering
business and accordingly may be subject to income
taxes in different jurisdictions depending on the routes
of the cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide,
if any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management’s judgement that
the Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions based on the existing routes of the cruise
ships and the operations of the relevant companies.
In addition, the Group has obtained indemnity letters
from tenants to confirm that all relevant tax exposure
of the Group's cruise ships would be borne by the

tenants.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information from fair market value by
reference to independent valuations. This conclusion is
supported by independent professional appraisers who
were engaged by the Group during the year to perform
valuations on the Group's investment properties and
cruise ships. As at 31 March 2015, the fair values
of investment properties and cruise ships amounted
to HK$630,540,000 (2014: HK$625,300,000) and
HK$69,420,000 (2014: HK$81,120,000), respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The gross deferred tax
asset relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March
2015 was HK$4,158,000 (2014: HK$4,172,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2015
was HK$207,441,000 (2014: HK$250,829,000).
Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial

statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their businesses and
services and has three reportable operating segments

as follows:

(a) the cruise ship charter services segment engages
in the provision of chartering services of cruise

ships;

(b) the property investments segment invests in prime
office space and commercial shops for its rental

income potential; and

(c) the securities trading segment engages in the
trading of marketable securities for short-term

investment purposes.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit before tax except
that interest income, finance costs, as well as head
office and corporate expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents,
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets

as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers during
the year (2014: Nil).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BESINER (F)
(continued)
Group
£35S
Cruise ship
charter semvices Property investments ~ Securities trading Total
BRHERE NERE 2588 aif

2015 214 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-1% “E-0F Z%-3f -5-0F “%-1f _Z-MF Z3-1f _5-MOF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TEr  TEx TEr  TEn  TEr  TER  TiEx

(Restated)
(mE3))
Segment revenue: PHHRA:
Income from extemal customers ~ REJMFEP 2 A 65950 70,860 20214 18667 61,747  (21730) 147911 67797
Other income and gain A ARKE 689 - 298 29 - - 987 29
Total revenue and other income~ #EREERELHRAR
from continuing operations EHMARE 66,639 70860 20512 18696 61,747  (21730) 148898 67826
Segment results PRER 9650 58861 30,646 43416 61714  (21752) 102010 80525
Reconciliation: HE
Interest income FEMA 3,822 2,557
Unallocated income RARMA 116 -
Gain on dissolution of SN
subsidiaries oge 19,467 -
Corporate and other SERER
unallocated expenses AARER (26,747)  (29,163)
Finance costs BERA (1,066)  (1,297)
Profit before tax from FREOEEBELN

continuing operations BRI 97602 52622

Annual Report 2015 F R 1 1 1



112

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Group
*EE

Segment assets
Reconciligtion:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets
Assets related to a
discontinued operation

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Recondiliation;

Corporate and other
unallocated liabilites

Liabilities related to a
discontinued operation

Total liabilities

Other segment information:

Depreciation and amortisation

Fair value gains on investment
properties

Deficit on revaluation of
cruise ships

Fair value losses/(gains) on
equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss, net

Fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments, net

Capitel expenditure*

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

AHEE

g

SERAMRNE
gz

BE-BEAILAE
FHHEE

BEE

AHAR

55

SERELRNE
afF

BE-HCiLAE
FHHAR

Bak

A2 HEH -
EREH
RENFIATER
g

BaEh

Fit

BRRERATEEIIR
LBERE L AFEE
BB/ (k&) %8

fIESRIART
BERE 38
STl

plant and equipment.
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Cruise ship
charter services
BeRER%

2015 2014
“E-1F “E-[f%
HK$'000  HK$'000
T TEn
116,181 89,284
51,298 12,196
12,517 11,658
39,962 4
40,779 -

4. REDHER (&)

Property investments

NERE

2015 2014
“E-1f “I-[f
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn  TEn
653,300 641,002
4056 3,907
516 491
(14700)  (29,141)
6,538 -

Securities trading Total
2588 Chl
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-5F “T-[F Z8-1f _T-Q%
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEr TEm  TEx
(Restated)
(& Ej5)
383579 449724 1,153,060 1,180,010
542211 575,169
= 10,824
1,695,271 1,766,003
4,408 3,548 59,762 19,651
166,009 311458
- 21,243
225771 352352
= - 13,033 12,149
- - (14700)  (29,141)
= - 39,962 42
(46,046) 33300  (46,046) 33300
860 3548 860 3548

47,317

* BEAXHEREYE - BEAERENIE
e



4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

4. REDHEHR (A)

Geographical information & & #
(a) Revenue, other income and gains from (a) KEIREPZHA - A
external customers oA R W 7
2015 2014
—E—HF —T—MmF
HK$' 000 HKg 000
it 5 Fi5
(Restated)
(FE&E3))
Hong Kong BB 59,253 4,536
Southeast Asia except REgap
Hong Kong (TBEEE) 89,645 63,290
148,898 67,826

The revenue information of continuing operations

above is based on the locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

RSB XIS AE R
LA P P B 18 13 A B0 -

(b) B EE

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZT—mF

HK$' 000 HK$' 000

FET FH&T

(Restated)

(& E5))

Hong Kong o 548,191 533,785
Southeast Asia except Rz

Hong Kong (TBEEB) 173,760 188,451

721,951 722,236
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information (continued)
(b) Non-current assets (continued)
The non-current asset information of continuing

operations above is based on the locations of the

assets and excludes financial instruments.

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately HK$65,950,000 (2014:
HK$46,282,000) was derived from the provision of
cruise ship charter services to a major customer. In the
prior year, revenue of approximately HK$24,578,000
was also derived from the provision of cruise ship

charter services to another major customer.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,
represents cruise ship charter service income,
gross rental income received and receivables from
investment properties, dividend income and gain/loss

from securities trading during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA SRR EE

31 March 2015

—E-RFZA=+-H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ HBW A R Wz (&)
(continued)
An analysis of revenue and other income and gains B E EEE A R EAM B A
from continuing operations is as follows: RWaszofwT :
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E2-HF —THWF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&eE5))

Revenue N
Cruise ship charter service income & &3 8 & AR 75 Uz A 65,950 70,860
Gross rental income from KEWMEEER

investment properties e U A 4azE 20,214 18,667
Fair value gains/(losses) on HIFEERGREAER

equity investments at fair value BAFEBES R RE

through profit or loss — held K’E 2 NFER

for trading, net Wa (E1HB) - FHE 46,046 (33,300)
Fair value losses on derivative TESEITA

financial instruments — N EEEE—

transactions not qualifying TR & B IR

as hedges, net MRS F8E (860) (3,548)
Dividend income from equity FIEEERGAREBERD

investments at fair value through  Z A FEEZIR 2

profit or loss — held for trading AR E 2 IR B WA 16,561 15,118

147,911 67,797
Other income and gains B AR K
Bank interest income RITH BULA 3,822 2,557
Others H At 1,103 471
4,925 3,028
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6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing

operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6. BRBLATEF

AREBFBEELEBELNBRBADG
ek (GEA) -

Group
REE
2015 2014
—Z—HF — 4
Note HK$' 000 HKg" 000
ihgss FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&=5))

Depreciation e 13,385 12,587
Auditors’ remuneration % S5 R B & 1,218 1,050
Employee benefit expense & B &8 M >

(including directors’ (BEMF8CES

remuneration in note 8): M) -

Wages and salaries TENEGS 14,770 14,661

Equity-settled share option DARE R 5 E

expense Bk EE A - 6,569

Pension scheme contributions RIRE FH &I 712 699
Total staff costs B T KA 4858 15,482 21,929
Minimum lease payments T R TF KL

under operating leases on HExEES

land and buildings REE 246 238
Foreign exchange differences, net [E X Z=%8 - JF 5 10,423 2,548
Direct operating expenses AERDMESH

arising on rental-earning REMFENERE

investment properties rEEH 1,845 1,772
Rental income on investment REMERRAREE

properties less direct operating 48 5 521,845,000/8 7T

expenses of HK$1,845,000 — T —PUF

(2014: HK$1,772,000) 1,772,000 7T.) (18,369) (16,895)
Fair value gains on investment KREYWHELNTER

properties SoplEs 15 (14,700) (29,141)
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7.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

[ 5 =§29
REREXBEENREKRAD A

is as follows: T
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—F-HF —THNF
HK$ 000 HK$" 000
FET FAT
Interest on bank loans, wholly AP LA T B ] 2 BB AE 1Y
repayable: RITERZHE
Within five years TFER 583 846
Beyond five years hF & 398 303
Interest on securities margin BAHREBERERP
account EEME 85 148
1,066 1,297
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EENRTNUBSHEEME
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration () E=EM=2
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed IR EMARARAIE B FHE
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of BIY (B32F) F1611EMIKE 2
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance KFEEESHMT
(Cap. 32), is as follows:
Group
rEE
2015 2014
e —E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FA&T
Fees ken 396 396
Other emoluments: H A% -
Salaries and allowances e NoFRL 6,498 6,498
Bonuses TE4L 1,218 1,218
Equity-settled share option VAHE 25 45 E #Y
expense Rk EE R - 5,336
Pension scheme contributions RINEFHEIH 386 386
8,102 13,438
8,498 13,834
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=ZA=+—8H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERANBSFEEMS

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) () EEM < (&)
In the prior year, certain directors were granted EF - EREAREENER - &
share options, in respect of their services to the TEERBARAIZ T —_4F
Group, under the 2012 Share Option Scheme of AR TS E R B E  E—
the Company, further details of which are set out B ER B RS R M 527 - BEAR
in note 27 to the financial statements. The fair EHAFEEEREEREKS
value of such options, which had been recognised BELERENATFEERIETA
in the statement of profit or loss, was determined ETE O MELE—FEBFBHRERS
as at the date of grant and the amount included WRNSFECD BIEE Ll E E
in the financial statements for the prior year was SHIPEER o

included in the above directors’ remuneration

disclosures.
(i) Independent non-executive directors () BUIFHTEF
The fees paid to independent non-executive REANZMNFEILIEMITE
directors during the year were as follows: E2EBWT
2015 2014
—E-—HF _—T—MF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FET FHET
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok SREAE ST 132 132
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 8 B {2 o A= 132 132
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al R B SE & 132 132
396 396
There were no other emoluments payable FER W FEA IS S IETT
to the independent non-executive directors EEIMEMME (—F
during the year (2014: Nil). —PO4E : 4E) o
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EENTNEBEHEEMS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (48)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) () EEM = (&)
(i) Executive directors (i) RiTEFE
Equity-settled Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
allowances Bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
DEREEN Bihe
FeREg A BREER HE L Mo
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThL Thx ThL TAL
2015 —E-1f
Executive directors: BIES:
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BREERE 1,490 279 - 88 1,857
Ms. Sio lon Kuan REMHRT 1,490 279 - 88 1,857
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda "RERRL 870 163 - 52 1,085
Ms. Lilian Ng BREXT 870 163 - 52 1,085
Ms. Chen Ka Chee RiEGTT 622 17 - 37 776
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 1,156 217 - 69 1,442
6,498 1218 - 386 8,102
2014 T
Executive directors: 475
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BRGRL 1,490 279 1,019 88 2,876
Ms. Sio lon Kuan BEELL 1,490 279 1,019 88 2,876
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BRRNL 870 163 873 52 1,958
Ms. Lilian Ng ERERT 870 163 873 52 1,958
Ms. Chen Ka Chee REEat 622 117 776 37 1,552
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 1,156 217 776 69 2218
6,498 1218 5,336 386 13,438

There was no arrangement under which

a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERANBSFEEMS
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)
(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments b)) EluESHEEMS
The five highest paid employees during the year FN- AfimkaFEERRERAM
included five (2014: five) executive directors, ZE—NF A HITES -
details of whose remuneration are disclosed in (a) Efe cf7FBE R EXX@ER
above. £ o
INCOME TAX 9. FREH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate RAFERN  BENSHERERE
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising EEZMEETERY R 1%16.5% 2 1
in Hong Kong during the year. In the prior year, no KEE AT BHRATEEBLEEA
provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made ARTFER I AT SRR -
as the Group had available tax losses brought forward EARERBOS M - Eit I 85 F S
from prior years to offset the assessable profits FISTAEL M - EfbiblE 2 RN
generated. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have AR IBTRIE AR B EIE A ER R
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the ZBRATMEGEHE -

countries in which the Group operates.

2015 2014
—E-—HF _—T—mF
HK$ 000 HK$" 000
FE T FH&T
(Restated)
(&e&E5))
Group: KEH
Current — Hong Kong KEFE-—FB
Charge for the year REEEM 1,105 -
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHEERE (6) -
Current — Elsewhere AEFE-Hfbih[=
Charge for the year REEER 80 90
Overprovision in prior years M EBRERE (22) (66)
Deferred (note 25) IEFERIE (MY 5E25) 548 261
Total tax charge for the year FAHIEERER 1,705 285
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/
(credit) at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the

effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group - 2015
rEE-—F-HF

9. FrBE® (4]R)

RAARRIREKELD WE AR ?
ZRABEEERZAERRAE 2R
AR (BR)ERZHEER
() BRRERBRERABEIHER
A/ (%) 28R ARERRE
(BREB X) MERB R Z AR
N

Hong Kong Elsewhere* Total
B Hit B &%
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR TER TR
Profit before tax from BEREEBELEN
continuing operations BT A 56,577 41,025 97,602
Tax at the statutory tax rate RETHEAE BB 9,335 165 6,974 17.0 16,309 16.7
Adjustments in respect of 5 D) B A
current tax of previous EHRE
periods igFEE: (6) - (22) (0.1) (28) -
Income not subject to tax BERTHA (6,541) (11.6) (7,668) (18.7) (14,209) (14.6)
Expenses not deductble for tax R A1 % 1,866 33 806 2.0 2,672 2.7
Tax losses utilised NMARBER (3,159) (5.6) - - (3,159) (32)
Tax losses not recognised ARZOHBER 429 0.8 - - 429 0.4
Others 2t (77) (0.5) (32) (0.1) (309) (0.3)
Tax charge at the Group's RASEERMREGNE
effective rate LHRERR 1,647 29 58 0.1 1,705 17
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FRB8%H (&)
Group — 2014
AEH - —FT—NF
Hong Kong Elsewhere* Total
B Bt E A
HK$' 000 Y% HK$' 000 Y% HK$' 000 %
TEL TEL TEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(m=50) (&573))
Profit/(loss) before tax from BREREBELM
continuing operations BEAEH /(BB (20,660) 73,282 52,622
Tax at the statutory tax rate BETEHERHEIHA (3,409) 16.5 12,458 17.0 9,049 172
Adjustments in respect of HIARTER
current tax of previous EHE
periods MRE - - (66) .1 (66) 0.1)
Income not subject to tax BERHRA (5,635) 27.2 (12,278) (16.8) (17913) (34.1)
Expenses not deductble for tax ~ A1 F % 4520 (21.9) 1 - 4521 86
Tax losses utilised fRRBER (18) 0.1 - - (18) -
Tax losses not recognised RERNTBER 5,020 (24.3) - - 5,020 9.5
Others At 17) 1] (1) (0.1) (308) (0.6)
Tax charge at the Group's BAGEERREHE
effective rate LHEER 261 (13) 24 - 285 05
* Elsewhere refers to tax in Singapore at the statutory tax *  HAebH RIS N ATIE 0 B 20k
rate of 17% (2014: 17%). TEMEAE17% (ZZFE—PM4E : 17%) °

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of

the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015

includes a profit of HK$91,259,000 (2014:

loss of

HK$27,056,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 28(b)).

10. XA AERB AEBAEER

BEFARQBFBHEERIEEF
—AF=ZA=Z=+—HIFEARQA
HmEANEBHSEAE RSN IERZFN A
91,259,000 L (ZE — M4 : I8
27,056,000/ 7T) (Kf5E28(b)) °
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 23 May 2014, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with a connected person
to dispose of its entire equity interests in Smarter
Cash Assets Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal
Group"). The principal asset of the Disposal Group is
its 50% equity interest in a subsidiary incorporated
in Indonesia, which in turn owns a resort with beach
frontage and a four-star hotel operating in Batam
Island, Indonesia. The disposal was completed on 31
July 2014. With the Disposal Group being classified
as a discontinued operation, the hotel operations
business is no longer included in the note for operating
segment information. The gain on disposal of a
discontinued operation amounted to HK$20,344,000,
after disposal expenses of HK$943,000. For details,
please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 23 May 2014 and 16 June 2014,

respectively.

The gain on disposal of a discontinued operation
stated in the Group’s unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2014 was HK$13,022,000,
which was revised to HK$20,344,000 in the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015. Particulars of the revision are set out

in the Company’s announcement dated 19 June 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 1T.ELLREXL (&)
The results of the Disposal Group for the year are RFEE HESEOEEIHOT -

presented below:

2015 2014
—E2-HF —THWF
Note HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Bt FET FET
Revenue LN 6,083 20,073
Cost of services provided FiT 12 4 AR 75 X ZX (5,987) (18,033)
Gross profit FEH 96 2,040
Other income H b Y A 568 2,126
Selling and distribution expenses 58 &5 5 X 51) (199)
Administrative expenses TR X (2,797) (8,575)
Foreign exchange differences, net [ H Z= %8 - JF 58 (1,216) (1,501)
Other operating expenses Hh 42 & X - (1,235)
Loss for the year from the RERZDKILKLE
discontinued operation HEBEENEE (3,400) (7,344)
Gain on disposal of the HEBERIEREET
discontinued operation HY UK 2 29 20,344 -
16,944 (7,344)
Attributable to: AT AT &1L -
Owners of the Company RRAER A 18,654 (3,670)
Non-controlling interest FEPE A% = (1,710) (3,674)
16,944 (7,344)
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by the Disposal Group are

as follows:

1M.ELRAILEE X (E)
HEEEELNFRSRENT :

2015 2014

— —T—EF

HK$' 000 HK$" 000

FHE T FET
Operating activities reEES (434) (38)
Investing activities & EE (293) (1,447)
Net cash outflow FIRE M (727) (1,485)

Earnings/(loss) per share:
Basic, from the discontinued
operation
Diluted, from the discontinued

operation

FRAEN,(EBE) :
BEAR - REDKLE

1 EFETE HK0.32 centi# 1l
B RADRIE
i HK0.32 centi# 1l

(HK0.06 cent/& 1)

(HK0.06 cent/& 1)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)

per share from the discontinued operation are based

on:

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company from
the discontinued operation

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year
used in the basic earnings/(loss)

per share calculation (note 13)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the diluted earnings/(loss)

per share calculation (note 13)

HeTHE
2015
—E—HE
ARAVE B
BEAEEREE
RIPEEEREEET/ (BE) HK$18,654,000% 7T

FTESREKRRN/ (BB)
B E A2 FR
BRITEAR
ETEHH (FE13) 5,771,553,910

SESRESRA (BE)

BER LBk

MEFHE (F13) 5,771,553,910

REERIEEEXZBNTRENRN
NEERN, (BR) DA TR

2014
—E—pUF

(HK$3,670,000/% 1)

5,767,012,541

5,769,350,935
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATER T M A
31 March 2015
—E—RF=A=+—H
12. DIVIDENDS 12. R E
2015 2014
—E2-HF —THWF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET FET
Interim — HK0.20 cent REIR B — B E AR
(2014: HK0.30 cent) 0.207 11l
per ordinary share —ZE—MFE : 0.3081l) 11,541 17,301
Proposed final — HKO.55 cent EEARAHRE-—EREBK
(2014: HK0.45 cent) 0.55 11l
per ordinary share (Z=Z—M4E : 0.45%810) 31,792 25,955
43,333 43,256
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to REFEFIRAREBREBFARRZK
the approval of the Company's shareholders at the RABMBRITZRERBFRE EH#t
forthcoming annual general meeting. T AHEE -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 5,771,553,910 (2014: 5,767,012,541) in issue
during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the year ended
31 March 2015 in respect of a dilution as the
exercise price of the share options of the Company
outstanding during the year was higher than the
average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares
and, accordingly, such share options had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per ordinary share

amounts presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 1I3.XARAREBRRESEAEL
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE SKERN (F)
COMPANY (continued)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per GRRERNREBRFTIIZA T & IEE
share amounts are based on: L
2015 2014
—®-HF —T-@mF
HK$'000 HK$"000
TERT FHET
(Restated)
(&E75))
Earnings 27
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary FEBRERBAE
equity holders of the Company, ERZARAIEBER
used in the basic earnings R ARG
per share calculation: AL (BR) :
From continuing operations REFBREER 80,176 33,577
From a discontinued operation RE—BERIEKEEER 18,654 (3,670)
98,830 29,907
Shares gy
Weighted average number of AEEBRERRN,/ (BR)
ordinary shares in issue during BEAZFA
the year used in the basic BETEARK
eamings/(loss) per share calculation MEFHE 5,771,553,910 5,767,012,541
Effect of dilution — weighted BENE-TAaR
average number of GopiliE= Bk g
ordinary shares:
Share options e - 2,338,394
5,771,553,910 5,769,350,935
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.%E - - BERRKRE
Group
A
Medium-term
leasehold hotel Land and Fumiture,
properties in buildings in Leasehold fixtures and Motor Cruise
Indonesia Hong Kong ~ improvements equipment vehicles ships Total
AEHBEE B BENZ Bl
i) 1HRET 14 RERGR il B aif
Note HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
iFd Tn THL ThT ThT T#n TEn ThT
31 March 2015 Z§-TEZRZt-A

At 31 March 2014 and W-E-RE=A=1-HR

at 1 Aprl 2014 R-E-MEMA-B:
Cost or vlugtion NAglE 20571 19,000 4089 16828 6,051 81,120 184,469
Accumulted depreciaton £ E
and impairment R (20571) (4302) (37765) (14.202) (4834) - (81,674)
Net carying amount SHRE - 14,698 3,134 2,626 1217 81,120 102,795
At 1 Al 2014,
net of accumulated H
depreciation and impaiment 75 & - 14,698 3,134 2626 1217 81,120 102,79
Additions AE = 6,518 20 284 = 40,779 47,601
Defict on revaluation st - - - - - (39962) (3996)
Deprecition provided F5E
duing the year fERR - (506) (817) (356) (251) (12517) (14447)
Disposal of subsidiries HEMBAA 29 - - (2182) (2115) (44) - (4.341)
Bichange redignment EiAE - - (136) (%) ® - (235)
AE31 Merch 2015, RZZ-1%=R=1-8
netof accumulated NRZENE
deprecition ba:{ - 2,710 19 k1 918 69,420 91411
At 31 March 2015
Cost or valuation - 25518 3,047 1,692 2,654 69,420 102331
Accumulated depreciation - (4,808) (3,028) (1,348) (1,736) - (10920)
Net caring amount EasE - 20710 19 344 918 69,420 91411
Analysis of costorvaluation: LA EEAN:
At cost 0 - 25518 3047 1,692 2654 - 9N
At31 Merch 2015 B-E-1%=R=1-8
velugton ftE - - - - - 69,420 69420
= 25518 3,047 1,692 2,654 69420 102331

130  Annual Report 2015 %



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—_E—RFE=A=+—H

14. 9% BERRE (&)

(continued)
Group
REE
Medium-term
leasehold hotel Land and Furniture,
properties in buildings in Leasehold fixtures and Motor Cruise
Indonesia Hong Kong  improvements equipment vehicles ships Total
ki (35 RS FUR
EENE THREF 5B KERRE e % At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tk T T T T Tk TR
31 March 2014 ZE-mEZA=T-H
At T April 2013: RZZ-=£@A-R:
Cost or valuation A fEE 23,851 19,000 46,231 18,163 6574 92,820 206,639
Accumulated depreciation 2RHTE
and impairment B (23,667) (3,886) (41,001) (15,353) (5,047) - (88954)
Net carying amount EEFE 184 15,114 5230 2810 1527 92,820 117,685
At 1 April 2013, RZE-Z£@A-B-
net of accumulated Nk ZENERARA
depreciation and impaiment LRE 184 15,114 5230 2810 1527 92,820 117,685
Additions HE - - 609 950 15 - 1574
Defict on revaluation SEEH - - - - - (42) (42)
Depreciation provided RER
during the year nEERE (163) (416) (817) (832) (314) (11,658) (14,200)
Impairment ifE - - (1,235) - - - (1,235)
Exchange realignment EXRE 1) - (653) (302) (1) - (987)
At 31 March 2014, RZE-mEZA=f-8"
net of accumulated Nk ZERERAE
depreciation and impairment LR - 14,698 3134 2626 1217 81,120 102,795
At31 March 2014: RIB-ME=f=t-B:
Cost or valuation At 20571 19,000 40899 16,828 6,051 81,120 184,469
Accumulated depreciation 2RNE
and impairment B (20571) (430) (37,765) (14,202) (4.834) - (81,674)
Net carrying amount SHEE - 14,698 3,134 2626 1217 81,120 102,795
Analysis of cost or valuation: RAGEEN
At cost AR 20571 19,000 40899 16,828 6,051 - 103,349
At31 March 2014 %-Z-ME=R=1-A
valuation 6] - - - - - 81,120 81,120
20571 19,000 40,899 16,828 6,051 81,120 184,469
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

14. 9% - BERRE (&)

Company
b NN
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment
R KB
]
HK$’000
FET
31 March 2015 —E-HF=A=+—8H
At 31 March 2014 and RZZE—NFE=ZA=+—HBxK
at 1 April 2014: RZE—NFMA—A :
Cost DN 1,237
Accumulated depreciation RETE (808)
Net carrying amount REFE 429
At 1 April 2014, net of RZZE—UFMUH—A -
accumulated depreciation HBREBRITE 2 FE 429
Additions NE 37
Depreciation provided REE
during the year reERE (123)
At 31 March 2015, net of R—_E—RAF=ZA=+—H "
accumulated depreciation R ERBITEZFE 343
At 31 March 2015: R-_E-—RAF=ZA=+—8:
Cost DN 1,274
Accumulated depreciation REFE (931)
Net carrying amount REFE 343
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Company
ZAN/NES]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 iR R M 5E
31 March 2015

—E-RFZA=+-H
14.9% - BERZE (&)

Furniture, fixtures
and equipment

T

S
HK$" 000
FET
31 March 2014 —E-WMFE=A=+—H
At 1 April 2013: RZE—=FWMA—H:
Cost DN 1,122
Accumulated depreciation 2RI E (656)
Net carrying amount REDFE 466
At 1 April 2013, net of RZZE—=%MH—H
accumulated depreciation HBREBRITEZFE 466
Additions NE 115
Depreciation provided REFEE
during the year eEsE (152)
At 31 March 2014, net of R-E—NF=ZA=+—H
accumulated depreciation MR RBITEZFE 429
At 31 March 2014: R-ZE-—NF=A=+—H:
Cost DN 1,237
Accumulated depreciation RETE (808)
Net carrying amount AR EFE 429
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015

—E-hRF¥=RA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The Group’s land included in property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying amount of
HK$15,869,000 (2014: HK$11,138,000) is situated in

Hong Kong and is held under a medium-term lease.

The Group's cruise ships were revalued on 31 March
2015 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an
open market, existing use basis. A revaluation deficit
of HK$39,962,000 (2014: HK$42,000) resulting from
the valuation has been charged to the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% - BERRE (&)
(continued)
Fair value hierarchy RNFEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value TRETAEERHBN AT EES
measurement hierarchy of the Group's cruise ships: [Zik

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using
R=A=t-AATEEHERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EER O BAUHE BEXFTA
mERE BWAE BEBAE

(F-BXR) (BZER) (B=EBR) aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
THT THET TET THET
Recurring fair value FEMDF
measurement for: BlEE
2015 —E-IF
Cruise ships iy - - 69,420 69,420
2014 —ZT-QmF
Cruise ships #Him - - 81,120 81,120
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFEARN BMEBEEF—EALFE=
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no BRzEEHBEEANEHE=EX

transfers into or out of Level 3.

WAFEEE-
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FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

AR EERER (E)

14. 9% - BERRE (&)

DERAFEBEBRANE=ZBRORA

B 1A 3R PO %I BR -

Cruise ships

&
Level 3
E=ZERX
2015 2014
—E—HF —T—F
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TET FHET
Carrying amount at beginning R F EHH)
of year BRE® % 81,120 92,820
Addition 0 40,779 -
Depreciation provided REE
during the year e (12,517) (11,658)
Loss from fair value adjustments R B R F(EBEFAE 2 FIE (39,962) (42)
Carrying amount as at 31 March R=ZA=+—HBH®EELE 69,420 81,120

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of cruise ships:

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable input
BEX
fEER M TABERBAE
Cruise ships Market Data or Market price
Comparative
Sales Approach
i mSEEX mHER
AL E A
Cost Approach Remaining useful life
PRAE RAERER
Rate of newness
P T R
Market discount rate
[EECRiEiES
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VAT 7% BLED 8 ik (B PR ER A 0 1 (E BRIl
NEBHAENOHRE

Range

(weighted average)

&E

(hnfEF 9 8)

2015
—E-RF

US$8,648,000
to US$9,295,000

8,648,000% T
%9,295,000% 7T

5 to 6 years
526%

5% to 9%
5% % 9%
80%

2014
—E—mF

US$10,307,000
to US$10,725,000

10,307,000 7T
%10,725,000% T

6 to 7 years
674

5% to 9%
5%% 9%
80%



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Market Data or Comparative Sales Approach
considers prices recently paid for similar assets, with
adjustments made to the indicated market prices to
reflect condition and utility of the appraised assets
relative to the market comparative. Asset for which
there is an established secondhand market comparable
is best appraised by this approach.

The key input was the market price per unit, which a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair
value of the cruise ships.

The Cost Approach considers the cost to reproduce
or replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar
assets, with allowance for accrued depreciation
arising from condition, utility, age, wear and tear, or
obsolescence present, taking into consideration past
and present maintenance policy and rebuilding history.

The key inputs were the rate of newness and the
market discount rate, which a significant increase/
decrease in the rate of newness in isolation would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair
value of the cruise ships and a significant increase/
decrease in the market discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair
value of the cruise ships.

Had the cruise ships been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
their carrying amount would have been approximately
HK$69,420,000 (2014: HK$81,120,000).

At 31 March 2015, the land and buildings in Hong
Kong with a net carrying value of HK$14,282,000
(2014: HK$14,698,000) were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 24).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

14. 9% BERRE (&)

NP EERR (&)
TSR A LW EEE B RO
BUEEMINNHER  WHIEED
MG ERELFEE - A RBRAE SRR
MISMHEEENMRAE AR - B8
B EU - F B EE KT AR
fER&E -

TEHAEBLELTIHER - mHE
ARG I, & G B AT E
BEXREEMN D -

RAVETIRBBLUEENRITHHE
& R EAR - ERIER - B -
FRERFENBR M B R
B URERBEMRENRERR
NMGERRE - R AEEENLEZHN
MBEXEEARAN -

EEWABAKIERTHIIE -
PR 3T 5 28R U 0 B B
AT EEXEEM D o TR
R BRI, B G BB
AFBEKERD EM -

WMZEHBIZBERABRRETE
KB EEBSIE - AFEEZRAER
#) /69,420,000/8 7T (ZF — 4
81,120,000/ L) °

RZE—RF=A=+—8 4%
R F1E A14,282,0008 L (==
— PO : 14,698,000 7T) 2 &FE L
WREFEFEERF  ERAEEHER
ZRITEE (MiFE24) ©
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FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties consist of five
commercial properties in Hong Kong and one
commercial property in Singapore. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 March
2015 by Knight Frank Petty Limited and PREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate balance
of HK$630,540,000 (2014: HK$625,300,000). Each
year, the Group's executive directors decide, after
approval from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group's executive directors have discussions with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed

for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are

included in note 32(a) to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties located
in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$366,200,000 (2014: HK$359,500,000)
and investment property located in Singapore
with a carrying value of HK$104,340,000 (2014:
HK$107,800,000) at 31 March 2015 have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group as further detailed in notes 24 and 31.

Further details of the Group's investment properties are

included on pages 223 and 224.
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REEEHE  REMEDRATE=
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment

properties:

Recurring fair value

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

15. REY =X (5]R)

AFEERX
TRERAEERENENATEE
HHEE R

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=A=+-AAVPEEHERA

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2)
EHE O BEAAUEER BART

(Level 3) Total

s RE BAE BEBAE
(F-BR) (B=BR) (B=EBX) ChH
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET THET TET

SEMDT

measurement for: BEGE:
2015 —E-RfF
Commercial properties [SEZYES - - 630,540 630,540
2014 —T-F
Commercial properties EE3JES - - 625,300 625,300

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

MAFEERN  BMEESE -BRAEE -
JBRz e e A HE =FX
WAFEEFE(ZT—MF: #) -
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A F5 3R WP aE

31 March 2015

—T-Af=A=+—8

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. R&EW = (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEER (E)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFEBEBBRIANE=ZBXHA
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: T EEFENEER

Commercial properties

[GEXZES

Level 3

E=ZERX
2015 2014
—E2-5F —TOF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET

Carrying amount at beginning R FEHH)

of year BRE &% 625,300 501,000
Addition =Pl — 95,139
Gain from fair value adjustments KB R FBEFAHE 2 Kt 14,700 29,141
Exchange realignment HE H, 8 B (9,460) 20
Carrying amount as at 31 March R =ZA=+—H®NEE S 630,540 625,300
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31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15.35 &8 Y2 (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEER (&)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used TRl EMEMERRBNIEE
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment Rk FEZ@m ABOHRE
properties:
Valuation Significant Range
techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
BEX & E
CREESR1 TABRBAE (¥ HE)
2015 2014
—E-fHE —E—mE
Commercial Direct Comparison Market price per square feet HK$23,000 HK$15,000
properties Approach to HK$25,000 to HK$25,000
[SEZYES =232 %3 BYHRMHER 23,0005 7T 15,0007 7
£25,000/8 T £25,0008 7T
Income Market rent per square feet HK$320 to HK$530 HK$310 to HK$520
Capitalisation BYTRMISHEE 3208 T E5308 T 3108 T ES208 T
Approach Capitalisation rate 2.75% to 3.00% 2.75% to 3.00%
L ON- N7 B %x 2.75%%3.00% 2.75%%3.00%
The Direct Comparison Approach provides the market BEELBEABBLEEUYMELERFH
value of an expropriated property by comparing it MSBEHNEER LW ENTTIS
to values obtained in the open market of similar BE HEBTCYEEEBKRE=E
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at EXTHR  BRFERWENTAR L&
the value of the properties, including identifying the ERASZ BREAICSHEMNEUME
highest and best use of the property; identifying (TAJLEESEE ) « RE A EREERN
similar properties that have been previously sold (the BEFLHALE -

“comparable sales”); and adjusting the value of the

comparable sales.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The key input was the market price per unit, which a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair
value of the investment property.

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted
annual rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing
lease period; and the sum of the average unit market
rent at the capitalisation rate after the existing lease
period.

The key inputs were the market rent and the market
yield, which a significant increase/decrease in the
market rent in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties and a significant increase/decrease in the
market yield in isolation would result in a significant
decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment

15. REY=E (]R)

AP EERR (&)
ETEHABRELTIHER - mHE
BAIEIEMN, RS EEBRREMER
FEEANEG IR

AWABARMEETEEN R FEERIA
EARRBENFHESBBHRAM
EHFEOHREEREREENR
i ERAHERRNFHEMTS
HEREARNEE RYTIRE AR -

FTEHAEAMBSEE LTS E R
xR mBHASEBABEGMN RIS
HYIREYERNFEERNEE I
L o T 35 [0 ¥R & B & K g 4 0 A
SEYRREYWERNFEBEREBRLY
BN e

~

E) \s

7

properties.
PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 16. TR b B
Group
rEHE
2015 2014
—E-HF _—T—NmF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
TEX THET
Carrying amount at beginning RF E HH)
of year BRE A 781 1,449
Recognised during the year R [E g R (149) (482)
Exchange realignment FE X, 38 £ (34) (186)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29) HEME R 7 (Mf7E29) (598) -
Carrying amount at 31 March R=EZA=+T—H®HKRAE - 781
Current portion &) &R - (469)
Non-current portion JEmBNEL - 312
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31 March 2015
—E-RF=ZA=+—8H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17.RMBLARZRE
Company
AT

2015 2014
—Z—1RF Z—TNF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET THET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMMMD - LK AE 1 1
Due from subsidiaries G NG E | 620,093 585,025
620,094 585,026
Less: Provision for impairment R OR (B B (52,584) (61,409)
567,510 523,617
Due to subsidiaries XL S (372,818) (395,308)
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, FEWHI B AT RIEYEKE - 28 %
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. WHEETESHE - EERE  ZEH
In the opinion of the directors, these advances are IR ARNATRENE QMRS
considered as part of the Company's investments B — 205 o FEATHT B A 5] 2k 1E I 4K

in its subsidiaries. Amounts due to subsidiaries are B NAREIRES -

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of

amounts due from subsidiaries are as follows:

17.RHEARZRE (&)

M R 28 ) 3002 L 2 B
T

Company
b NN

2015 2014

—E—HRF —ET—mEF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

THET FET

At beginning of year RFE W] 61,409 60,243
Impairment losses Bt (#E)

provided/(reversed) VERIEN Ei=] (8,825) 1,166

At 31 March R=RAR=+—H 52,584 61,409

The above provision for impairment of amounts due
from subsidiaries represents a provision for individually
impaired receivables. The individually impaired
receivables relate to the Company’'s subsidiaries that
were in financial difficulties. The Company does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances. During the year, there was a reversal
of impairment as a subsidiary was able to repay part of
the receivable upon the receipt of proceeds from the

disposal of its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 7. AMB AT Z2RE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWMBRARIZFFRFAT
Place of Percentage of

incorporation/ Issued equity attributable Principal

Name operations share capital to the Group activities
EMmERL/ BT KEEERS
L BEm A BEAEIH TEXRK
2015 2014

Century Rich Investments British Virgin US$1 60 60 Securities
Limited Islands ("BVI")/ (E trading
EREUHES EHER

((ZBRz#ES])/

Hong Kong

0
Jackston Maritime Limited BVI/ US$10,000 60 60 Cruise ship
EBRIES/ 10,000% 7T investment
International Water BHiE

N
Queenston Maritime Limited BVI/ US$10,000 60 60 Cruise ship
RBRUBE/ 10,000% T investment
International Water BHRE

N
Gaintech Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
MERBERAA £ 28T investment
NERE
New Century Properties Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Investments Limited £ 2T investment
HEEMERERRAA NERE
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
BHREBERRA £ 28T investment
NERE
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. AMBAT Z1B8E (@)
FEMBARIZFBOT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued
Name operations share capital
EfRL/ BRfT
28 EEwE BAE
Wise Century Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1
EHRERRAAF &R 1T
New Century Group HK Investment Singapore S$1
Pte. Ltd. g 15T
PT. Horizon Bandar Bahru*/* Indonesia US$2,200,000

e 2,200,000% 7T

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

*  This joint venture was classified as a subsidiary because
the Group had unilateral control over its board of
directors. On 23 May 2014, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement to dispose its
entire equity interests in Smarter Cash Assets Limited,
which had 50% equity interest in PT. Horizon Bandar
Bahru. The disposal was completed on 31 July 2014
and the Group ceased to have any equity interests on
the same date. For details, please refer to note 29 to the

financial statements.
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*

#

Percentage of

equity attributable Principal
to the Group activities
AEEES
BEEDM TEEH
2015 2014

—2-1Ff -T-QF

100 100 Property
investment

NERE

100 100 Property
investment

NERE

- 50 Hotel
operations

BREEE

FRE YW IR L RBBRL KBRS
—HBEZ -

HRAEBEHZEE AR ESE
WESBFEESIE Al ZEE
AIFEM B AR - RZZE—UFERA
Z+=8 " AKEFLBEBKREEER
% - A& E jASmarter Cash Assets
Limited (E AAPT. Horizon Bandar
BahruR #E B 500k A% ) 2 & 5B
Az - HEFHEER _ZT—NF L
A=+—H%/K  BRHEE  ~NEHE
TEHRBEARENEZR - BHEFIE -
WME2 S RERM 29 -

b H]E>



17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly

held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ACE Properties Pte. Ltd. was dissolved on 7 April 2014.

Treasure Hunt Investments Limited and Turboprop
Investments Limited were struck off from the register

on 1 May 2014.

Wisdom Crown Assets Limited and Worksmart
Profits Limited were struck off from the register on
1 November 2014.

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests are set out below:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

17.RHEARZRE (&)

INEFrBEETEWNB ARG HARFME
ZRA -

ERFZARANBATDEHR
BUHAREAFEEBEEEAYE
S AREFEAELERS - EFR
B MBI ALK B A R 2 HE4E -
EEBRIE -

ACE Properties Pte. Ltd.EEFA —Z — I
FAEHBR -

Treasure Hunt Investments Limited &
Turboprop Investments Limited 2072 —
T—UFRA—HHRELMHIR -

Wisdom Crown Assets Limited &
Worksmart Profits Limited®@ 7 = &
—FE+—H—BRELMHIIK -

BERFERERNAEBNBE R T
MBI

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

IEIERERTFENRAERA DL -
Century Rich Investments Limited
Jackston Maritime Limited
Queenston Maritime Limited
PT. Horizon Bandar Bahru
(disposed on 31 July 2014)
(BERZZE—WHFELtA=+t—HHSE)

2015 2014
—E—FHEF —E—NF
40% 40%

40% 40%

40% 40%

- 50%
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31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17.AMBATZIRE ()
2015 2014
—E—FHF —ZT Py
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET

Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non-controlling interests:

DEEFZERESEORNEZ BN, (BIB)

Century Rich Investments Limited 11,859 (4,813)
Jackston Maritime Limited (1,894) 7,947
Queenston Maritime Limited 7,551 15,874
PT. Horizon Bandar Bahru

(disposed on 31 July 2014) (1,710) (3,566)

(ERZZE—HWOFELA=+—HBHEE)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests during the year:

MARFEAXZN FIFERERORE

Century Rich Investments Limited 14,000 -
Queenston Maritime Limited 24,360 -

Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests at the
reporting dates:

RS H HSE A S o) REt SR

Century Rich Investments Limited 2,543 4,683
Jackston Maritime Limited 2,245 4,163
Queenston Maritime Limited 8,285 24,553
PT. Horizon Bandar Bahru

(disposed on 31 July 2014) - (53,859)

(ER-_F-—HmNFELtA=+—HLHE)
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17. RMB AT ZRE ()
TRER LLMERRNABREE
B o BT ER & AR FHE 2 R R 8

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are

disclosed before any inter-company eliminations: BT A& 58 ¢
2015
—E2—FHF
Century Rich Jackston Queenston PT. Horizon
Investments Maritime Maritime Bandar
Limited Limited Limited Bahru*
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET

Revenue and other income Yt A & E b U A 30,822 22,598 44,041 6,415
Total expenses Rx @ (1,174) (27,334) (25,163) (9,835)
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ AEEEF|/ (BE) 29,648 (4,736) 18,878 (3,420)
Total comprehensive AEEEENE

income for the year k] 29,648 (4,736) 18,878 (3,420)
Current assets mBEE 295,873 15,844 30,968 -
Non-current assets kRBEE - 21,060 48,360 =
Current liabilities nEaE (289,516) (31,293) (58,615) -
Net cash flows from RELEES 2

operating activities BEREFE 47,907 33,175 37,851 152
Net cash flows used in BREEEE

investing activities RemeFE - (24,094) (19,288) (247)
Net cash flows used in ARBEEE

financing activities RemeFs (31,412) (9,071) (18,563) =
Net increase/(decrease) in R & REEEEY

cash and cash equivalents  #11,/ (i4) %5 16,495 10 - (95)

* Disposed on 31 July 2014

*  ERCE-MNEEA=+—HEHE
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FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015

—E-RFZA=+—H
17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts

are disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

(continued)

17.RHEARZRE (&)

TRERLANERRMMGEHMESR
£t o P BB /ARG EMR A B E ¥
RIEY T RR ¢ (A8)

2014
—E—EF
Century Rich Jackston Queenston PT. Horizon
Investments Maritime Maritime Bandar
Limited Limited Limited Bahru*
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TET TET
Revenue and other income WA K £ I A (11,938) 24,578 46,722 21,513
Total expenses RY B (95) (4711) (7,036) (28,645)
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ AFEEF,/ (EB) (12,033) 19,867 39,686 (7,132)
Total comprehensive AEER2ERE
income for the year B (12,033) 19,867 39,686 (7,132)
Current assets mBEE 297,798 2,742 13,949 12,872
Non-current assets FRBEE - 25,740 55,380 5,689
Current liabilities REaE (286,090) (18,074) (7,946) (20,875)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - - - (105,404)
Net cash flows from/ RE/ (AR &g
(used in) operating BB RERE
activities FHE 110,673 23,867 44,936 (38)
Net cash flows used in ARREEE
investing activities ReneFd - - - (1,447)
Net cash flows used AREEEE
in financing activities BeneF8 (109,849) (23,870) (44,938) -
Net increase/(decrease) HERBREEEY
in cash and cash #gm/ (i)
equivalents FE 824 (3) ) (1,485)

*  Disposed on 31 July 2014
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2015
—F-HF
HK$’ 000
FTET

Trade receivables FEWE R K 69,910

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR R P aE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

18. B E 5 AR X
Group

AEH

Company
NN
2014 2015 2014
—E—F —E—REF —E—F
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TET FET TATT
9,086 13,581 53

The Group’s and Company's billing terms with
customers are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally
payable within 30 days of issuance. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group and the
Company seek to maintain strict control over their
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by senior management. The main type
of collateral held by the Group as security is rental
deposits received from tenants with a fair value of
HK$15,128,000 (2014: HK$15,905,000). Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AREBRANFHEBERRZ Z#EK
REZUNEERRAET - EEAT
EREHBE-THABMS & E
EZEEELR - AEERARQF
IE sk R E R 2 FE YRR 30N A BR
EEdc aREBEABSTHESA
HiZ I - REBRHEER/ERZE
HoREEHEAMMELP WA FE
8 415,128,000 7T (= F — U 4F :
15,905,000 70) 2 H & KR ® B
B SRR T B -

Annual Report 2015 F R

151



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015
—“F-RF=A=+-H
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEWWE 5 RM (&)
Below is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of T REWE ZERFIGRIBER R
impairment, based on the invoice date, which is the BEZAH (AMRERE 2 BH) 28K
date when the services are rendered. BR AT o
Group Company
REH ¥/ NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —FT—mHF —E—FHF —E—EF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FETT FHET FETT
Within 1 month —EAA 31,924 7,657 13,581 53
1 to 2 months — =M E A 5,212 1,056 = —
2 to 3 months M 2= = & A 3,020 232 - -
Over 3 months HBiE=1E A 29,754 141 - -
69,910 9,086 13,581 53
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

18. EWE SR (&)
3 4 1 B 2k S B R(E 2 FE UK R B R 3K

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired ZEREOHTT
is as follows:
Group Company
rEH NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —T—WMWFE ZZB-—HE _—T-MOF
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$" 000
TET THET FE T TAETT
Neither past due 7R 38 HA 7R
nor impaired RIERE 25,440 1,204 13,581 53
Less than 1 month I Ef 7
past due — & A 6,484 7,508 - -
1 to 3 months BHI—ZF
past due =@A 8,232 311 - -
Over 3 months B HARE B
past due — @ H 29,754 63 = —
69,910 9,086 13,581 53

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group and the
Company. Based on past experience, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Certain subsidiaries have pledged trade receivables of
approximately HK$365,000 (2014: HK$140,000) to
secure bank loans granted (notes 24 and 31).

R HR IR R VR (B 2 FE UK BR 3R TS 1 3R
ZTRNBEEAR  REEOHLE
R GRIARC 8% o

BHMB R AERUE 2 IR R R T B 8
HAEERARAA R ZEY
BEEARHE - REBERLR  ~AAFE
ERA ARREBRRZEEERY
BEANEIHMERERBEALEDH
Wem - A B R S A R R E B
1 e

ETHBRARECEBN BB
365,000/ 7T (= Z — U4 : 140,000
BIL) MEKRE ZEREFIERBIKIRTT
BERME R (M 5E24%31) ©

Annual Report 2015 F R

153



154

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

19. AN RE - REREMEWEER

ESN

Group Company
rEE NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-REF —mFE  ZB-—HF — T
HK$' 000 HK$OOO HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET FHET FET
Prepayments FETFRIE 988 1,412 831 800
Deposits and Re REM
other receivables Ji& 1K BR 5K 4,437 3,818 384 845
5,425 5,230 1,215 1,645

None of the above assets is either past due or

impaired and there was no recent history of default.

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

WE A EESCARKEIRE " &
3T HA 7 4 46 IR SRR R 8% o

20 ZBEZBAFEEIKRZKR

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS EEE
Group Company
rEEH KA HE
2015 2014 2015 2014
i —mE  ZB-HE —ZE-OF
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TET THETT FHET TAET
Listed equity TR
investments, ®E -
at market value mmiE 383,579 449,671 191,243 227,105
The above equity investments at 31 March 2015 and RZE—RAFER_F—WF = A
2014 were classified as held for trading and were, =+ —H - FlRERET SRR
upon initial recognition, designated by the Group and TEEE @ ANEERARFRYVIRTER
the Company as financial assets at fair value through T ABEBEBHEIEAFBHEYES
profit or loss. SREE °
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20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

21.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

At 31 March 2015, the Group's and the Company's
equity investments amounting to HK$383,579,000
(2014: HK$449,671,000) and HK$191,243,000
(2014: HK$227,105,000), respectively, were pledged
to secure margin account facilities granted to the
Group and the Company (note 31).

Assuming the portfolio of the Group’'s and the
Company's equity investments remained unchanged,
the market values of the Group's and the Company's
equity investments at the date of approval of
these financial statements were approximately
HK$405,180,000 and HK$201,984,000, respectively.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

20. ZEBESFEAFEEIKRZRKR

ERE (&)
R-_ZTE—RAFE=ZA=Z+—H &%E
= & AR El 5 Rl 7 #383,579,000%
7L (ZZ — 4 : 449,671,000 7T)
191,243,000 7L (=& — U4 -
227,105,000 7T) 2 R #ER E B 1F
IR LSRR TAEEBRAQFZ
REBECEPEE (M:E31) °

BEAEELAARINOKRERER
EHBTNE  AEBERAERQABK
BRENRZEVBREHAEZBED
W1E 5 Al 49 &405,180,000% 7T &
201,984,000/ 7T °

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Q1. ERBEEEY

Group Company
rEH ¥ /N |
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—HF —T—F —E—FE —E—py4E
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
T#ET FAET F&ET FAET
Cash and bank RE KIRTT
balances eREa 339,745 373,650 211,944 190,397
Time deposits E HRfF R 173,881 197,343 173,881 197,343
Cash and cash Re kIR
equivalents EEY 513,626 570,993 385,825 387,740

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to HK$103,848,000 (2014:
HK$100,539,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RImERR AEBRARKE (TA
REDIWENERASEEYE
103,848,000/ T (= & — I 4F
100,539,000/ 7T) © BE AR TEE
EHEMEEEHRE®  BERESE
KBERIINE B RGO RAEE - SER
NIEERRE - NEBEA LUBAAE
HEITHINE EIFHIRTTIE AR LK
HMEE -
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HHtLEBEEBEARLE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

21.

22.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between eight days
and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS, OTHER
PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

The aged analysis below shows the Group’s and the
Company's trade payables, based on the goods receipt

date and the date when services are rendered.

21.

AERAEEEY (A

WITREF RS YIRES B RITFRF
EIZFBHFEE B - BHEHFRZ
FHREBNTNAREZ@ATE 1]
FTAEEZABREFEME LI
EEMEMFERME D  |ITHF
e T 81T 3R Ty 15 R B B R 4T B3 4%
T BAHE R RORAE 8% 2 BRAT -

2. BNEZRM  BstRE - H

bk AR R E WIEE

AT RAFEERADRZENESHE
FRI% 1 AR UCCER B HA R AR A5 R 4 B HA AR
STZBRER DT -

Group Company
rEE NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —_FT-@mE ZB-HF —FTHNF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET TETT FE T FETT
Trade payables:  FEfI & S R3K
Current to ENH %=
180 days 180H - 2,654 - -
Accruals FEET IR 1,574 2,439 1,495 1,561
Other payables B FE 5 BR X
and deposits ke
received Be 55,275 33,815 - -
56,849 38,908 1,495 1,561

The non-current portion of deposits received of
HK$2,139,000 (2014: HK$3,249,000) is included as
non-current liabilities. The trade and other payables are
non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-

day terms.
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

23. 074 €/ T A

Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E—HF —ZT—mF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE a& BE afE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
FE T TEx FHET FA&T
Equity option % 5= B 278
accumulator R f R A
contracts a8 - 1,098 — 2,920
Equity option IEEERE
decumulator FRoh B
contracts a % - 3,310 - 628
- 4,408 — 3,548
Company
b N
2015 2014
—E—HF —ZT—mF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE 8 & BE afE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
FExT THEx FHET FA&TT
Equity option % 5= Bf i 278
accumulator 0 f R A
contracts a4 - 549 - 1,460
Equity option IREHERE
decumulator FRoh B
contracts a % - 1,655 - 314
— 2,204 — 1,774
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FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015

—E-RE=A=1+—H
23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The equity option accumulator contracts and equity
option decumulator contracts were a series of
forward contracts for the Group and the Company
to accumulate and decumulate, respectively,
specific units of certain securities listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong according to the contracts
at predetermined prices on every trading day. The
equity option accumulator contracts and equity
option decumulator contracts would be terminated
automatically if the closing prices of the underlying
securities on any specified trading day during the
contract periods are at or above, and at or below,

respectively, the predetermined knock-out prices.

These contracts were derivative financial instruments
and were measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. As at 31 March 2015, the fair
value of the equity option accumulator contracts and
equity option decumulator contracts for the Group
were stated at credit balances of HK$1,098,000
(2014: HK$2,920,000) and HK$3,310,000 (2014:
HK$628,000), respectively, based on the valuation
performed by an independent professionally qualified
valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$860,000 (2014:
HK$3,548,000) in respect of these contracts was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

As at 31 March 2015, the fair value of the equity
option accumulator contracts and equity option
decumulator contracts for the Company were stated at
credit balances of HK$549,000 (2014: HK$1,460,000)
and HK$1,655,000 (2014: HK$314,000), respectively,
based on the valuation performed by an independent

professionally qualified valuer.
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23.0TE €M T EH (&)

BRI RERBES O MERE
ERERAHRGOR/ATERAR

AN RIRBEAENESER S AREE
BERRERBELRERAET BB
FT EHEE TRESFOFEEREMN— X
JIEEAS K - INRABBEEFES L
RAERIERAR 5 BT E D 5IF

ReEmn RERFTERIEEWEE -
A ZHERERERRS O RRE

HitE RTE7 ”/EHH%(:T?’JAE@J%& °

ZEAHNRITESRITA é*&%,ﬁﬁ
EH*'AFH BifE2 - R-_ZT—RHF=
A=+—8  REB E%Aéﬂﬁw
EER]] ﬁﬁﬂﬂaﬁ NEE R E
2ERABHEAGAOERREZHERRE

REHESHNNATFTEES R AE
H,\\uﬁ%l,098,0007%7E(:;5 — PO -
2,920,000 7T ) 53,310,000/ 7T (=
T —PY4F : 628,000 7T) * WE BEFZ
EENEREBRRABERAFEE
{8 E518860,000/8 7T (=& — WM 4 -
3,548,000/ 7T) °

T-AF=ZA=+—8 " BEE
XEERMGEMETHNMEE
AIREHEZERBERES
MR EHERERLAHAESEON D
FEED AT 549,000
7T (ZZF — Mm% 1,460,000 7T)
% 1,655,000# 7T (=& — MU 4F -
314,000 L) °
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

24. 5T BR1T R H AL E K

Group
EHE
2015 2014
“§-if “E-pF
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity ~ HK$'000 interest rate (%) Maturty ~ HK§'000
AHRI% (%) 8B TER ANHE () ER TER
Current ik
Curent portion o~~~ REH/TER Hong Kong Interbank
long-term bank loans,  #1i&)205 Hong Kong Prime rate offered rate
secured (BER) - 1.675% p.a. to Hong Kong +15% pa. to Hong Kong
Prime rate - 1.625% pa  On demand 2860  Primerate- 1625%pa. Ondemand 59442
Bk (30
BEEAZ - 1675EF 2 BARERE + 15BER
5% EER
REEAZ - 165EFE  BEREE REENE - 160EFE  EEEE
Singapore Interbank
offered rate + 1.08% p.a.
to Singapore Interbank Singapore Interbank
offered rate + 1.48% p.a. 2016 743 offered rate + 1.08% paa. 2015 933
ik
BOEERE + 1.08EEE
L3k il
BORXRE + 146EFE  —R-5F BARERE + 108858  —F-1F
Longtem bank loan ~ EEKEEH Hong Kong Prime rate Hong Kong Prime rate
repayable on demand, & EHHTEF - 1.675% p.a. to Hong Kong - 1.675% p.a. to Hong Kong
secured (Note) (RHEH#) (i) Prime rate - 1.625% p.a On demand 2975 Primerate- 1.625%pa  On demand 5,835
Bk (3
REEHZ - 1675EF R REEHE - 1675EF8
5% &R
BEEAZ - 165EFE  EEREE BEZHE - 1605EF8  EEREE
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FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 24. st ESRIT R H A& K (&)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Group (continued)
AEE (&)
2015 2014
%-1% “E-|E
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity ~ HK$'000 interest rate (%) Maturty ~ HK$'000
SRR () %R TEn A% o) %R TEn

Current (continued) 78 (%)
Other loans, secured M EF (BEA) Singapore Interbank
offered rate + 2% paa.

to Hong Kong Prime rate~~ Ondemend 30,028
R

ROAXRS + 258
5EE

REENME  EELE

e

6,578 96,238
Non-current e
Longterm bank loan,  REZTER Singapore Interbank Singapore Interbank
secured (RER) offered rate + 1.48% p.a. offered rate + 1.08% p.a.
to Singapore Interbank o Singapore Interbank
offered rate + 3% p.a.  2017-2038 23,070 offered rate + 3% pa.  2016-2038 26,004
Eifib il
BORXRE + 146EFE  —B-tF BORZRE + 106888 —F-57F
EHME S IR E
ROBRKE +3EFE  ZBINE RORERE +3BFE  ZF)\F
29,648 122,242
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 24. 5T ESB TR EMMER (E)
BORROWINGS (continued)

Company
/N
2015 2014
ZE-1F it S [
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity  HK$'000 interest rate (%) Matury — HK§'000
SHRIZ() 48R THEn ANFIZ (%) U8R TER
Current ik
Other loans, secured ~ EHE 5 (FHH) Singapore Interbank
offered rate + 2% p.a.
fo HKD cost of fund
- - - +175%pa Ondemand 14439
il
RITAXRE + 2BFS
i

BEeMA+ 1 T5BEE EZREE
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 24. 5T BR1T R H AL AR (&)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Group Company
rEE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-fHfF —E-NF —E-AfF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TER TET
Analysed into: AR
Bank loans JE 18 & )
repayable: RITER
Within one year —FR%K
or on demand & &3k
(Note) GE 6,578 66,210 = -
In the second FoF
year 745 815 - -
In the third to Fg=%
fifth years, ERF(BIE
inclusive BEME) 2,387 2,525 = -
Beyond the FRER
fifth year 19,938 22,664 - -
29,648 92,214 - -
Other loans FE &R Y
repayable: HE X
Within one year —FAK
or on demand e Z 5Kk - 30,028 - 14,439
29,648 122,242 - 14,439
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

Note:

The Group's loans in the amount of HK$5,835,000
(2014: HK$65,277,000) containing a repayment on-
demand clause have been reclassified as current
liabilities. For the purpose of the above analysis, the
loans are included within current interest-bearing bank
borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable

within one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the loans, the
amounts repayable in respect of the loans are:
HK$2,860,000 (2014: HK$59,442,000) within
HK$2,066,000 (2014: HK$2,861,000)
in the second year; and HK$909,000 (2014:
HK$2,974,000) in the third to fifth years, inclusive.

one year;

Certain of the Group's bank loans and other loans are

secured by:

(0

(ii)

(iii)

(V)

mortgages over some of the Group’s land and
building together with its investment properties
which had an aggregate carrying value at the
end of the reporting period of approximately
HK$393,240,000 (2014: HK$481,998,000)
(notes 14 and 15);

corporate guarantees up to HK$205,105,000
(2014: HK$177,445,000) provided by the
Company;

rental assignment over certain of the Group's
investment properties located in Hong Kong
and Singapore, which included the Group’s
trade receivables with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$365,000 (2014: HK$140,000);
and

the Group’s equity investments amounting to
HK$449,671,000 as at 31 March 2014.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ 3R R BaE
31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

24. Gt BRAT R H LB (&)

M 5E - AN 5 @ & £05,835,000%8 7T (=&
—PU4F : 65,277,000/ 70 ) FOE FRE
BIRERERMNEBRR  WEKLE
MoBMARBABE - LMo
' E%:%f?k@%&»@b;ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

AT R E R EESK
ZﬂiﬁT@*” o

ﬁ il

i
F”a’ >:r

RIBERNINRGR  HEFRE
EEN SRR —FR2860,000
BT (ZZF — M4 : 59,442,000
W % = 42,066,000/ 7T
— P4 £ ¢ 2,861,000/ 7T) ¢

EEEM

;‘%ﬁ)?

RE-ZZEZFRHF (B

) 909,000 7L (ZF — U F :
2,974,000/ 7C) °
AEBEFRTERMEMERTAT

P& EEHE R

() AEBZAEF LMW RETFER
HITEME IR - RATRE E
K ZEEEZHAEEEL AR
393,240,000/ 70 (=& —PU4F
481,998,000/ 7T) (M sE14 K%
15) 5

ARAFRHZRATNERESZ R
205,105,000/ 70 (=& —PU4F :
177,445,000 JT)

(i)

2&%@**?&%%%2%%@;
EBEWMEMRES RN
iBz CHPeEAEEZEWRE S
AR R - B AR A & 88 4V /365,000

(i)

BT (ZZE— PO F : 140,000
) &
VR =—ZZEE—WNFE=A =+ —

H AEBZREKRE ABH
449,671,000/ JT, °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Except for secured long-term bank loan of
HK$23,813,000 which is denominated in Singapore
dollars, all bank and other borrowings are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. All bank and other borrowings

bear interest at floating interest rates.

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

24. 3t BERAT R H A B (&)

BrEEFREIRITER23,813,0008
TUAFT N T REF BN - FRA IR
TREMERTIAB T AEEEN -
FrAaR1T R H M &I E B F 5t

et

ﬁo

5. BEREEE BE
EERAEBRAENFENZEBH

during the year are as follows: I
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Group
TEE
2015
—=E—A%F
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation
ERBE
ZSREBNITE
HK$" 000
FE T
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—UFMH—HA 5,471
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FREBE K AT Z
profit or loss during the year (note 9) EERTE (M 5E9) 534
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-ZE—RF=HA=+—H
at 31 March 2015 IR IR B ER R 6,005
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31 March 2015
—E—ARF=ZA=+—H

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 25 EERIIEESE A (E)
(continued)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BEIEMRBEBEELREERFARNZ EB)UN
during the year are as follows: (continued) T (&)
Deferred tax assets EEBRIEEE
Group
REME
2015
—E-RfF

Losses available
for offsetting against

future taxable profits

AT {3t 3K 85 R 3R

ERBER B8

HK$'000

TEx

At 1 April 2014 RZZE—UFMUAH—AH (4,172)

Deferred tax charged to the statement FHNEBRERARZ

of profit or loss during the year (note 9)  MEIEF{ A (MI7£9) 14
Gross deferred tax assets R-ZE—RF=A=+—H

at 31 March 2015 ZIRETIE A EBRE (4,158)
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued)

25 EEBIREE B E (FE)

BERBREREENFRNZEBHU
(8

Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE G
Group
AEE
2014
—ET-EF
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation
HERTRE
ZRIBEEHNITE
HKg$' 000
FETT
At 1 April 2013 A—ZE—=FmA—H 4,951
Deferred tax charged to the statement FAEBRRANNGRZ
of profit or loss during the year (note 9)  IEFEFIAE (Ff7£9) 520
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—NF=A=+—H
at 31 March 2014 ZIEEF A B BB 5,471

Annual Report 2015 #£3§



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E—ARF=ZA=+—H

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 25 EERIIEESE A (E)
(continued)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BEIEMRBEBEELREERFARNZ EB)UN
during the year are as follows: (continued) T (&)
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Group
KEE
2014
—F—mF

Losses available
for offsetting against

future taxable profits

AT {4 35 R 2k

FE AR T m M 2 BT 48

HK$ 000

FHET

At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FMA—H (3,913)

Deferred tax credited to the statement FAEERZEANFTAZ

of profit or loss during the year (note 9)  #EZEFLIE (M 7£9) (259)
Gross deferred tax assets RZE—F=H=+—H

at 31 March 2014 ZIRETIE A EBEE (4,172)
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31 March 2015
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial

reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax liabilities REra iR &
recognised in the R
consolidated statement IR AE R 18
of financial position BEFHA

25 EEBIHEE B E (F)

BINERME - MBARRAKRAE TIEL
MEBEBEE;ABECD TEE - L THI
E B R A G 2 AR EIR TR R4
BRZ DM

Group

rHEE
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
—E-HF —TNmF
=A=+t—H =A=+—H
HK$"'000 HK$" 000
FET T
1,847 1,299

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$232,642,000 (2014: HK$248,643,000). The
tax losses in Hong Kong are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets of HK$34,228,000 (2014: HK$39,601,000)
have not been recognised in respect of tax losses
because these tax losses have arisen in companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 25 EEBIEEE S8 (&)

(continued)

At 31 March 2015, there was no significant RZE—AF=—H=1T—8  x&EH
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2014: Nil) for tax 2 B8 A B I % R R BE B A B2
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of -7 2 B4 T8 H 3R AF {a] & KR BERRIE IR
the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to HEE(ZZE—WUF - &) - AMZS
additional tax should such amounts be remitted. FIEEH - ANEEWEREINRIBESE ©
There are no income tax consequences attaching 2NN @) [A) H AR SRR A IR B I S BT
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its A pTISHER -

shareholders.

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R A
Shares iR 13
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mOF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERT FET
Authorised: ETERA
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares 40,000,000,000%
of HK$0.0025 each FRZHE{E0.0025/ JT
(2014: 40,000,000,000 ZERKR(ZZE—WME
ordinary shares of 40,000,000,0000% & i%
HK$0.0025 each) H{50.0025/8 7T 2 & iEAR) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EREITRARRKRA
5,780,368,705 ordinary shares 5,780,368,705/%
of HK$0.0025 each %M E0.0025/%8 7T
(2014: 5,767,768,705 ZERKR(ZE—WMFE :
ordinary shares of 5,767,768,7051% & A%
HK$0.0025 each) H{H0.0025/% 7T 2 B %) 14,451 14,419
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31 March 2015
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26. R A (48)
Shares (continued) B 5 (&)
A summary of movements in the Company's issued RAREHETRANESHFMAOT -

share capital is as follows:

Number of Issued Share
shares share  premium
in issue capital account Total
28T 2 ®1T B 13
BROHA (&N B R CEi
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FHET FET TET
At 1 April 2013 RZE—-—=FmMA—A 5,766,968,705 14,417 352,384 366,801
Share options exercised B 1715 &) i ik 4
(Note (a)) (M3E(a)) 800,000 2 146 148
At 31 March 2014 RZE-—NF=A=+—H
and 1 April 2014 ZE-MFEOA—H 5,767,768,705 14,419 352,530 366,949
Share options exercised B 171 /0 B Ik 4%
(Note (b)) (FIE(D)) 12,600,000 32 2,463 2,495
At 31 March 2015 R-ZB-HF=ZA=1+—H 5,780,368,705 14,451 354,993 369,444
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(®)

The subscription rights attaching to 800,000 share
options exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.1532
per share (note 27), resulting in the issue of 800,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$123,000. An
amount of HK$25,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account upon the

exercise of the share options.

The subscription rights attaching to 12,600,000
share options exercised at the subscription price of
HK$0.1532 per share (note 27), resulting in the
issue of 12,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0025
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$1,930,000. An amount of HK$565,000 was
transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share

options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and

the share options issued under the schemes are

included in note 27 to the financial statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

26. BB A (4&)
B (48)
B 5E
(a) PKIF800,00017 g fixtE £ o REEIZ

®)

FR G AR0.1532/8 e B R B (E 173 (B
F127) - AL 1TE R E{E /£0.0025
7T HY800,000% FiAx - KRR &
A B ERIE©123,000% T - A
AR A E R & 225,000/ T BB B
EETERE AR ®ER -

B 712,600,00015 fiE A% # E &9 32 f&
BT MR0.1532B T REE
T (M&E27) AL EITERE
{8 /30.0025% JT #912,600,000% &
B ANBREANEAREARS
1,930,000/ 7T - BB R ERES
565,000 7T 7 B IR AEE TS 8
AR5 m B RE o

AR I

AR

BB R AT 8 A MR iR % F 5T 2

FATEVRB AR E 2 7 IR B P 5 3k Mt
27 e
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
4 September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed
for adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”) and termination of the
share option scheme of the Company adopted on 23
September 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”).
Outstanding share options granted under the 2002
Share Option Scheme prior to the termination shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2002
Share Option Scheme (collectively referred to as the
“Schemes”) are operated by the Company for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the

Group's operations.

Details of the Schemes are as follows:

(a) Participants
Participants are any directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of
the Company and employees of the Group
and any advisors (professional or otherwise),
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers
of any member of the Group who the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed or will

contribute to the Group.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(b) Subscription price

©

The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant of an
option (the “Date of Grant”) which must be a

business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Schemes and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in the
absence of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate
exceed 10% in nominal amount of the aggregate
of Shares in issue on the adoption date of the
Schemes (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Schemes and (as the case may be) such other
share option schemes of the Company will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme

Mandate Limit.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 iR R M 5E
31 March 2015

—E-RFZA=+-H

27. R ET & ()
REGBZFBWT (&)

(b) REEE
RBESHESTREBHEG
BE R R T %fEEEQ—FEJ
FHTPORRE

() AABEFRMEE.0025 T
Z Wt (TR 1) 1E R AR R 52
ERE(REBE] (©aE
REFER) KT E (BB
AR SAAMRRA A ([
FTl) BSREFTEE RLE)

Bty fE E IR H B B AT (@
EERB U E (AR
RTEMEMBERE) R

)

(i) R EE -

fix 47 £ BR

RGRCRHLAERT - AI P B RIE
ZE 5 8 AR BE A H A B AR
RERT 81X O BB IR T AT T (E B
BITHORD LR - A5 T 15E8
RZEABRMBHE HITHOR
MEELFE10% ([ 8K ER
#]) - BERBIEERRER R
BEZENE L (REBAIERME)
ZAN/NCIP e Rl i e Al RS
RERBBERENTEHE -

(©
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(d) Maximum number of options granted to

(e)

)

each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each grantee under the Schemes (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not (when aggregated with
any Shares subject to options granted during such
period under any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company other than those options granted
pursuant to specific approval by the shareholders
in a general meeting) exceed 1% of the Shares in

issue for the time being (the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making
an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years

from the Date of Grant.

Remaining life of the Schemes

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated
on 4 September 2012. No further options shall
thereafter be offered under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme but the options which had been
granted during its life shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue and in all other respects the provisions of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall remain in

full force and effect.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
its adoption date, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(g) Acceptance of options
The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 and 30 days for the 2012
Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, respectively, from the Date of Grant,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the Grantee.

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

27. B8 (&)

ZEFEZFHBOT - ()

(g) B

AL BB =+NAX
(ZE——_FBREE) =+
RK(ZEZ—FHEREED A -
EENBRASINHBTZA
ENEAINEZ T THERE
B4 -

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under

the Schemes during the year:

RERAE Y A T H A A IRBE
REBRAREREZHER -

FRRBHBE  MATEZE
RS B2 T

2015 2014
—E-RE —E—-F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of

exercise price

share options

exercise price

share options

MFEF3 TG
TEE EBREHE TEE  BREHE
HK$ per share '000 HK$ per share 000
BRET + FRET T
At beginning of year REEA 0.1891 401,720 0.2100 256,128
Granted during the year FRART - - 0.1532 150,000
Forfeited during the year* — F R 0.1897 (1,680) 0.1880 (3,608)
Exercised during the year ~ FRTT{E 0.1532 (12,600) 0.1532 (800)
At 31 March R=B=+—8H 0.1903 387,440 0.1891 401,720

The weighted average share price at the date of

exercise for share options during the year was
HK$0.1687 per share (2014: HK$0.1600 per share).

*  Forfeiture of options is accounted for as lapse of options.

N 1TE ZBBRRERTTE B HE 2 h0
HEFHRMHEW B SR0.1687F T
(ZZ— P4 : FH0.160087T) °

ORI E R B IR ERRRE -
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

27. fE kRt & (&)

BB AR 1R 1T 2 W MR 2 1
EERTEHNT :

2015
—=E—A%F
Number of share options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TREE 1THREHE
'000 HK$ per share
T BRET
252,840 0.2100 21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—E2——F—HA=+—HZE
—E2-—-F—-A=+H
134,600 0.1532 03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=HNA=RAE
—E-=%NA=H
2014
—E—yF
Number of share options Exercise price* Exercise period
B E ITE(E* 77 {2 BA
'000 HK$ per share
+ FETT
253,920 0.2100 21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—E——F—-—HAZ+—BZE
i e =
147,800 0.1532 03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023

—E—=FNA=ZH=ZE
—E-=ZFNAZ-H

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share
options granted to employees and directors. The fair
value of the share options granted in the prior year
was HK$6,569,000 (HK$0.0485 each and HK$0.0308
each for share options granted to directors and
other employees, respectively), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$6,569,000
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

The fair values of equity-settled share options granted
in 2013 and in 2011 were estimated as at the date
of grant, using the binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the

model used:

Dividend yield (%) K B8R (%)

Expected volatility (%) T8 B K & (%)
Historical volatility (%) JF s 3% 1 (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 3, b 7 & (%)

Expected life of options (years)
Weighted average share price

(HK$ per share) (8RBT

R 2 TR ()
IniEF R M ERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

27. B8 (&)

ETREEREFZ WARITE Z BAE
WHEGEBH - E—FEMRTHOBER
RN F(EEA6,569,0008 T (F T
EEREMEENERESNAE
70.048578 7T & & 170.0308# 7T ) -
HbPAEERBEE-_T—NF=A
=T —BLEFERNERNEREER
46,569,000/ 7T °

RoE—ZER-FT——FHH 2N
AR R 2 A T (TS B
B A = TE S M T (B AT
I 1 A 2 R R e 3t o TR
BB S AT A2 R

2013 2011
—_F—= —EFE——%F
4.090 3.660
50.382 50.000
50.382 50.000
3.072 2.817
10.000 10.000
0.1532 0.2100
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27.

28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The expected life of the share options is based on
the historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The 12,600,000 share options exercised during the
year resulted in the issue of 12,600,000 ordinary
shares of the Company and new share capital of
HK$3 1,500 and share premium of HK$2,463,000, as
further detailed in note 26 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
387,440,000 share options outstanding under the
Schemes. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 387,440,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$969,000 and share
premium of HK$95,807,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 15
April 2015, 800,000 share options with an exercise
price of HK$0.2100 per share of other employees
lapsed.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 386,640,000 share options
outstanding under the Schemes, which represented
approximately 6.7% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 59 of the financial
statements.
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28. RESERVES (continued) 28. & (&)

(b) Company (b) X2 H
Share Share
premium option  Contributed  Retained
account  reserve surplus profits Total
Rkt  BRE
BER i HERR REET At
Notes ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TET  TARX TET FET FET
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=FNA—H 352,384 17,319 162,587 219,245 751,535
Total comprehensive AEERE
loss for the year EBEAE 10 - - - (27,056)  (27,056)
Issue of shares TR 26 146 (25) - - 121
Equity-settled share R EE
option arrangements BT 27 - 6,569 - - 6,569
Transfer of share option PR Y A
reserve upon forfeiture BRERE
of share options ZEE - (163) - 163 -
Interim 2014 dividend ZE-RmEREKRE 12 - - - (17301)  (17,301)
Proposed 2014 final —T-MERE
dividend FAKE 12 - - - (25955)  (25955)
At 31 March 2014 and RZE-WE=A=F—H
at 1 April 2014 ERZE-NEMA—A 352,530 23,700 162,587 149,096 687,913
Total comprehensive TEERA
income for the year WizEs 10 - - - 91,259 91,259
Issue of shares R MH 26 2,463 (565) - - 1,898
Transfer of share option NS
reserve upon forfeiture BRRERE
of share options LB - (77) - 77 -
Interim 2015 dividend “E-RETHKRE 12 - - - (11,541)  (11,541)
Proposed 2015 final —E-nFRE
dividend RERS 12 - - - (31,792  (31,792)
At 31 March 2015 R=B-R%=A=1-H 354,993 23,058 162587 197,099 737,737
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

28. RESERVES (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of
the Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation over the nominal value of the
shares and share premium of the former holding

company acquired by the Group; and

(i a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2 June
1999.

The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(1) the reorganisation mentioned in note 28(i) above,
representing the excess of the nominal value of
the Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation over the then consolidated net

asset value of the acquired subsidiaries; and

(2) a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2 June
1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by Section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related options expire or be forfeited.

Annual Report 2015 #£3§

28. & (&)

AREBZEHBBIKE

() AEER—-—AAEFANA+T=AH
HEITZEH  RARFREASE
EEMAEITROEEBBEANE
[ Py W 8 2 BT HE B B B {7 B
B M REEMZ S &

(i) RE-—NANNFANA-RETZ
BARE A ™ B A 5 B Bk &
H:ll o

RINNS ol Foh i =

(1) EXMsE28()Fritz BEBAR
RIIRBEASEEEAMEITROE
EREBFKEBHE QR ER 247
BEEFREZHD &

@) RE-NNANFANA-RAETZ
NN = W G iR = e R
ﬁ o

RIEERECIBIFRFER) (K
A1) - FEZOEDIESARM 2 A T 15
AT ANRBZEFEBA DR TR
& o

BRhEREEECSRLY BAFTEZ
Bz 2 EE  FBERYB®RE
M RE2.4A R ) B AR I 2 &5t
R — R - B A RBRERNTT
E - BRARESEE BRI E
R SN A RE R O B B =R IR
ABBRRBEREBREEREBERN -



29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

29. HEKHB QA

2015
—E—HF
Notes HK$'000
B 5 FET
Net liabilities disposed of: HEMNBBEFHE :
Property, plant and equipment WMz - B NEHE 14 4,341
Prepaid land premiums TETHL (B 16 598
Inventories PENCY 1,049
Trade receivables, prepayments, FEWE SR - AR IE
deposits and other receivables e M E M EULERE R 3,453
Due from a fellow subsidiary B NG ] 2,053
Due from a related company FE UL B B A IR 166
Cash and bank balances B& NIRRT 2,528
Trade payables, accruals FERTE SRR - JERTIRIE
and other payables R E A FE T BR K (22,149)
Loan advanced from a non-controlling —HMBARZ —%
shareholder of a subsidiary IEIERR R BN 2 B (50,411)
(58,372)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR FE 5 54,407
Exchange reserve realised M B ER (7,322)
Disposal expenses incurred HEFBEENER 943
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H & M E A B Y as 11 20,344
10,000
Satisfied by cash AR & 2 1+ 10,000
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. HEMB AT (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HREEMBARMNRE RIREEE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is MEVERADITOT -
as follows:
2015
—E—HF
HK$' 000
FTExT
Cash consideration received BUEIRE KR E 10,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEMNRS RIRITER (2,528)
Disposal expenses incurred TEEEEANER (943)
6,529
30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30.RAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had R|EHKR AARGB TRITZR
outstanding guarantees of HK$205,105,000 (2014: 18 & #& 1R %8 /3205,105,00078 7T (—
HK$177,445,000) given to banks to secure general T — % : 177,445,000/ 7T) © 1F
credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the RAEBEETHEB XA MER K
Group. Credit facilities in an aggregate amount of EEBMEBEZHEM NMEHR &%
HK$29,648,000 (2014: HK$92,214,000) had been EMBARNAXSERECIHASG
utilised by these subsidiaries in respect of these 29,648,000 7T (=& — U4 :
guarantees as at the end of the reporting period. 92,214,000/87T) ZfEERE -
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31.

32.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s and the Company’s bank
facilities and securities margin account facilities,
which are secured by the assets of the Group and the
Company, are included in notes 14, 15, 18 and 20 to

the financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its cruise ships (note 14) and
investment properties (note 15) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for

terms ranging from one to three years.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its charters and

tenants falling due as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ 3R R BaE
31 March 2015

—E-RF=A=+—H
3.EEERF
BRAAEBERARNRRITREBEHRE
CHRPRE (BEUAEBERARAE
EEITR) 2 515D 5 E R B Rk W
14151820 -

2. EHELH
(@) LEBAEH
AEERBCEHELHHEER
Mg (ME14) RILEWMZE (M +=E
15) - MAamZBEBNF—F2
=% o

RZE-—RFL_ZT—OF=H
=+—8 AEERBEHEMERA
LMPRI M2 Ao B E R E
ZAR T HI G BN FE M 2 AR 2R B AR
HERIBEEFELOT -

Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —THEmF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 26,585 27,324
In the second to fifth years, E_EZERF
inclusive (BREEEMF) 16,544 7,487
43,129 34,811
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)
(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its commercial
properties under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one

to two years.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

2. EHE R H (&)

(b) AEBA & 65

REEREGEAETHRE R
ETFRAWME  MARZ BN
F— B o

R-FE-—AER_FT-—NF=H
=t—8 AEEREAHEHE
REMEARTIFHAZNZ
RSB S RIBEBRNOT -

Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-HF —FTWF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEX FET
Within one year —F R 91 250
In the second to fifth years, FEERF
inclusive (BEEEME) - 88
91 338
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33.

34.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

COMMITMENT 33. G

In addition to the operating lease commitments BR & SCHT 5E32(b)aF it 19 4% & 18 & &

detailed in note 32(b) above, the Group had the WO RSB - RREER AT
B A

following capital commitment as at the end of the

reporting period.

Group
EE
2015 2014
—E-HF —FTHEHF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THET FHET
Contracted, but for not provided DE LB REE
for leasehold improvement ZHEEMEERE 36 -
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 FABAE RS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial BRI A5 R H AR D 58 KBRS
statements, the Group had the following material R ASRBERREBS 2 EAR S
transactions with related parties during the year: o
(a) Related party transactions in connection with the () BEAEEEEBBR 2B X
Group's operations: Z
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—EF-HE —TWOF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
B 5 THET FET
Rental income received from BRI R B AR Z
from a fellow subsidiary e A ) 274 274
Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) 1< & M3 B 7 &£ 2
Cheow Leng e (i) 143 143
Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng =~ S =ER&LEZ
e (iii) 929 929
Management fee paid to X AR
a related company EEEH (iv) 108 111
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Related party transactions in connection with the

Group's operations: (continued)

Notes:

(i) The rental income was received based on a
tenancy agreement entered into between the
Group and a fellow subsidiary at a monthly rental
rate of HK$22,800 (2014: HK$22,800).

(i) The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust, which holds the entire interest
in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

(iii) The salary was paid to Mr. Wilson Ng, who is one
of the discretionary beneficiaries of a discretionary
trust, which holds the entire interest in Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company

of the Company.

(iv) The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Group and
a related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. ("Huang & Co"), for administrative services
provided at a monthly rate of HK$9,000 (2014:

HK$9,225).
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34. BB A R 5 (&)
(a) MALEEEAERZ MBS R

5

(%)

B3 -

0)

@i

(i)

(iv)

FH & WA IR AN 6 [ B — i [R) KB
B AR 2 AE U ER -
A% /22,8008 L (=Z—M
F 122,800 7L) °

FehNTEBEEE KA
—EAxRERZETARET
A MZEEEFEFERRE R
4z % A ®lHuang Group (BVI)
Limitedz & & 7 ©

el TEEREE  BER
— AR ER AP L%
Xm A MzEEEEF/EAR
N A B #3E IR A FlHuang Group
(BVI) Limitedz & 3425 o

ERE ML AEE R —HEEA
A]Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. ([Huang & Col) BLATIR 7T
BARIGET L W W ER - 8 AE
2 & A A9,0008 L (= — 1Y
4 19,225 7T) °



34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balance with a related company

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the Group had an outstanding
balance due to a related company of HK$12,000
which arose from the administrative services
provided by the related company to a subsidiary
of the Group. As at 31 March 2014, an amount
due from a related company of HK$174,000
arose from the purchase of daily consumables
and the receipt from the customers by the related
company on behalf of a subsidiary of the Group.
The balance is unsecured, interest-free and has
no fixed terms of repayment. Particulars of the

balance with a related company, are as follows:

) PSR

Name of the related company

Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

A BEBERS (&)

(®)

B B N B B9 A AR

WA S BRI RIREE - AR
AR mASEE —FHEA
ARHITRRTS - A& EEmE
TEAEE R BRI 2 RENERR
12,0008 - RZE—UF=H
=+—H8 BE#EBAREAEH
—HBARIBEAREER R
W BR % 5 SR8 i JE U B8 Bt N B AR
02 8 B1740008 7T ° 2%
ERREER  REREERER
RER - EAEAEE N RS RR 2 FEIE
(N

Group
#EH
Maximum
amount
31 March outstanding 31 March
2015 during the year 2014
—E-EHF FRREM e SIS
=RA=+-—-H BE€¥E =-A=t+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FTER FER TAET
(12) 174 174

The related company is beneficially owned by
certain close family members of certain directors
(Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng) of the Company.

LB R RJIAARRETES
(BERE#EE BHEZLL =
BRAZXETREFELRL) ZHET
EXRBEAEAR -
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31 March 2015
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Commitment with a related party

On 1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a service agreement with three-
month termination notice with Huang & Co, a
related company of the Company for the provision
of administrative services to the subsidiary of
the Group. The management fee paid to Huang
& Co for the year is disclosed in note 34(a). As
at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total future
minimum management fee payable to Huang &
Co amounting to HK$27,000.

On 31 March 2015, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a one-year lease agreement ending
31 March 2016 with ETC Finance Limited ("ETC"),
a fellow subsidiary of the Company, to lease its
investment property to ETC. The rental income
received from ETC for the year is disclosed in
note 34(a) to the financial statements. The
Group expects the total income receivable from
ETC for the year ending 31 March 2016 to be
HK$345,600.
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#wONRERAAREEZMER
ARMHITHARTS - BRI IL@BA
HA=MA REAFEAXNT
Huang & Co#) & 12 & F 1f iff &+
34@QNFEE - R_FT—RHF =
A=+4+—H &% EENHuang
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Loans advanced from non-controlling shareholders

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

4. BBEAERS (E)
(d) AEBEHBAR A2 IEEIRARHE 2

of the Group's subsidiaries ~NzER
Group
REH
2015 2014
—E—RF —E—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$" 000
B 5 T#E T FHET
First loan HEEX 0) - 52,702
Second loan REERK (i) 131,823 131,823
131,823 184,525
Notes: 5T
(i) With respect to the first loan, pursuant to the () HMEZEZMsS  RiEAEER

shareholders’ agreement entered into between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, the non-controlling shareholder agreed
not to demand repayment of the loan until the
subsidiary has the ability to do so and prior consent
was obtained from the Group. The non-controlling
shareholder was a fellow subsidiary of the
Company. The loan was unsecured and interest-

free.

Following the disposal of the Group's entire equity
interests in a subsidiary group engaging in the hotel
business in Indonesia on 31 July 2014, the first

loan was disposed of accordingly.

—FEIPf B8 & B) 2 — & FEHE A AR
RI 2 BRER I - sx A IEERA
RAZSEMBARBENENK
FERSAEEZEEREBR 77
BEREEER - sz B IR
RRARBZRARMBRA - &
RAEERR RS -

RZTE—MNFEA=+—HLEE
REBREENERETEXR
—EIF B ~ B SR B ) 2 BR A A
ik BEEREKEANRE -
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31 March 2015
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Loans advanced from non-controlling shareholders

of the Group's subsidiaries (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i) With respect to the second loan, pursuant to a
shareholders’ agreement entered into between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary, the shareholder shall not demand
repayment of this loan unless a resolution in
writing signed by all shareholders of the subsidiary
for the demand of repayment has been duly
passed at a general meeting. In the opinion of the
directors, after confirming with the non-controlling
shareholder, there was no intention for the non-
controlling shareholder to demand the Group to
repay this loan in the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the second loan was classified as a non-current
liability. The non-controlling shareholder is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company. The loan is unsecured
and interest-free.

(e) Disposal of subsidiaries to a fellow subsidiary

®

On 23 May 2014, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with
Castletop Investments Limited, a fellow subsidiary
to dispose of its entire equity interests in a
subsidiary group for a total cash consideration
of HK$10,000,000. The disposal constituted a
discloseable and connected transaction, which
was approved by the independent shareholders
in the Company's special general meeting on 4
July 2014. The disposal was completed on 31 July
2014 and resulted in a gain of disposal amounting
to HK$20,344,000, after disposal expenses of
HK$943,000.

The compensation of key management personnel
of the Company has been disclosed in note 8(a).

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)
to (e) above also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. REAE T 2EMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RE|ERR SHEeMIAZKREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N

period are as follows:

2015
—E2—FHF
Financial assets
EREE
Group
AEE
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss —  Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
AFEEE
ZEMEE- ERKk AHEE
REEE RBURER EREE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TERT TET TER THET
Available-for-sale investment ~ A[{EEE I E - - 780 780
Trade receivables EULE 5 BRI - 69,910 = 69,910
Deposits and other receivables 12 & K H fb & I Bk 3%
(note 19) (KsE19) - 4,437 - 4,437
Equity investments at fair BRBREATEE
value through profit or loss FIBR 2 IR HEIR & 383,579 - - 383579
Cash and cash equivalents BeEhBEFEY - 513,626 - 513,626
383,579 587,973 780 972,332
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

5. B8 s z2Em T A (&)

ReEFEHAR SEcMTAZERE
wmr (&)

2015
—E—HF
Financial liabilities
EA I3 =R
Group
TEE
Financial
liabilities at Financial
fair value through liabilities at
profit or loss — amortised
held for trading cost Total
NP EEYR DY 1%
ZEMEE- FFEZ
KIEEE cRMEE e
HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FTHET THER THER
Due to a related company J& 1< BA B A R IR - 12 12
Derivative financial instruments T4 & @ T A 4,408 - 4,408
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ &F 2R 4T1E 3 - 29,648 29,648
Accruals (note 22) JE 5t 30 IE (P EE22) - 1,574 1,574
Other payables and deposits HAin BRI &
received (note 22) Bz e
(PBi7E22) - 55,275 55,275
Loans advanced from AEBEHBARZ
non-controlling shareholders FEPEAR AR R B AF
of the Group's subsidiaries = = 131,823 131,823
4,408 218,332 222,740
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

5. BE8 s zEm T A (&)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SERMITAZEAEE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

2014
—ET—F
Financial assets
TRVE E
Group
AEE
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss = Loans and financial
held for trading  receivables assets Total
BRBERR
NFBEYR
JEMEE- ERE AIHHEE
RIEEE RUER cREE e
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FHET FET FHET FET
Available-for-sale investment A {EE5E 2 IH & - - 780 780
Trade receivables EUE SRR - 9,086 - 9,086
Deposits and other receivables & & & E ft & U BE 3¢
(note 19) (Bi&E19) - 3,818 - 3,818
Equity investments at fair BERERRATER
value through profit or loss P8R 2 RIER & 449,671 - - 449,671
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEEZEEY - 570,993 - 570,993
Due from a related company  FEU B A A1 ZUE - 174 - 174
449,671 584,071 780 1,034,522
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31 March 2015
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

5. B8 s z2Em T A (&)

RBERR SRR TAZEREE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting wmr ()
period are as follows: (continued)
2014
—T—EF
Financial liabilities
TREE
Group
AEE
Financial
liabilities at Financial
fair value through liabilities at
profit or loss — amortised
held for trading cost Total
FRBERR
NIFEETR DA SH K A
ZEmaE— R
KIEEE =N k]
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000
TAET FET FAET
Derivative financial instruments TEELMTA 3,548 - 3,548
Interest-bearing bank and STERITR
other borrowings H & 5K - 122,242 122,242
Trade payables (note 22) eI 8 5 8RR (HsE22) - 2,654 2,654
Accruals (note 22) JE &t kI8 (P EE22) - 2,439 2,439
Other payables and deposits H A TR K
received (note 22) Bz (M322) - 33,815 33,815
Loans advanced from REEWNBEARZ
non-controlling shareholders FEPERR AR R AT
of the Group's subsidiaries Z2E® - 184,525 184,525
3,548 345,675 349,223
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

5. BE8 s zEm T A (&)

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting wmr (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

RBEEHRR SRR TAZEREE

2015
—E—-HEF
Financial assets
EREE
Company
PN
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss -  Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
DN EEYE
ZEMEE- Rk AHEE
HEEE RBUER SHEE e
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TET THET TERT THET
Available-for-sale investment AHEEZRE - - 780 780
Due from subsidiaries & W Bft & A R
(note 17) B (ME17) - 567,509 - 567,509
Trade receivables EUE B ERR - 13,581 = 13,581
Deposits and other receivables Re RHEMEK
(note 19) R (FFEE19) - 384 - 384
Equity investments at fair BRBEHERAT
value through profit or loss BEINERZ
BERE 191,243 - - 191,243
Cash and cash equivalents Relkhe®
B - 385825 - 385825
191,243 967,299 780 1,159,322
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

5. B8 s z2Em T A (&)

RBERR SRR TAZEREE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting wmr ()
period are as follows: (continued)
2015
—E-RHF
Financial liabilities
AR
Company
NN
Financial
liabilities at Financial
fair value through liabilities at
profit or loss — amortised
held for trading cost Total
NP EEYR LA 85 BR 2<
ZEMEE- FFEZ
KIEEE cRMEE M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FTHET THER THER
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMTA 2,204 = 2,204
Accruals (note 22) FE T FRIE (Fifsr22) - 1,495 1,495
Due to subsidiaries JE A< Bt B A B k3B
(note 17) (BF&E17) - 372,818 372,818
2,204 374,313 376,517
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(continued)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

5. BE8 s zEm T A (&)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of I

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

2014
—E—F

Financial assets

TREE

HEMR SHEEMTAZEKEE

Company
PAN/NE]
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss = Loans and financial
held for trading  receivables assets Total
FERBERR
R EEDR
JERMEE- Rk AHEE
RHIEEE ERER SRAE R
HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET TET FET FET
Available-for-sale investment ~ A[{EEE 2 IR E - - 780 780
Due from subsidiaries & W BT /B8 A Rl RIR
(note 17) (fEE17) - 523,616 - 523,616
Trade receivables BN E 58X - 53 - 53
Deposits and other receivables 1% & K H fb & U B 3¢
(note 19) (K&x19) - 845 - 845
Equity investments at fair FEREREATEE
value through profit or loss IR 2 IRIER & 227,105 -~ - 227,105
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEY - 387,740 - 387,740
227,105 912,254 780 1,140,139
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

5. B8 s z2Em T A (&)

RBERR SRR TAZEREE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting wmr ()
period are as follows: (continued)
2014
—T—EF
Financial liabilities
TRAE
Company
PN/NE]
Financial
liabilities at Financial
fair value through liabilities at
profit or loss — amortised
held for trading cost Total
FiBEWIR
NFEETER DA SH K A
ZEmAE— EZ
FIEEE =N i
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000
TAET FAET FAET
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA 1,774 - 1,774
Interest-bearing other borrowings &t 8 H {1 & 3% - 14,439 14,439
Accruals (note 22) JE 5t 3k IE (i EE22) - 1,561 1,561
Due to subsidiaries JEA BT BB A B 5K IE
(note 17) (M3517) - 395,308 395,308
1,774 411,308 413,082
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NOTE

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36

S TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

ERMTAENAFEERATYE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEERX
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's REETREQAFEEAEROSE
and the Company’s financial instruments, other Sh REERALF R T ASKRME
than those with carrying amounts that reasonably THEERFEEBELT
approximate to fair values, are as follows:
Group
TEH
Carrying amounts Fair values
REEHE AFEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF _—T-NOF ZB-—HF _—T-MOF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
THET FET TEX FA&ET
Financial assets EWMEE
Equity investments FERBERIR
at fair value through R F(E{EZIEE
profit or loss 2 IR E 383,579 449,671 383,579 449,671
Financial liabilities EWas
Derivative financial THEEHE
instruments TE 4,408 3,548 4,408 3,548
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015

—E-RFZA=+—H
36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
and the Company’s financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values, are as follows: (continued)

ERMTEANAFEERQATE

BEERX (&)
BERESHEEATEEARELE
oh - AEBMRADR SR T ANKRE
SERATEEMT : (#)

Company
¥ NN
Carrying amounts Fair values
REHSHE AFEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF _—_T-NOF ZFB-—HF _—TNF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FET T TH&Ex FHET
Financial assets EWMEE
Equity investments FERBEWIR
at fair value through R F (BB
profit or loss 2R ERE 191,243 227,105 191,243 227,105
Financial liabilities c@maesE
Derivative financial MTESH
instruments IER 2,204 1,774 2,204 1,774

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, bank deposits, trade receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to
subsidiaries, amounts due from/to a related company,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, loans
advanced from non-controlling shareholders of the
Group's subsidiaries and the non-current deposit
received approximate to their carrying amounts and
accordingly no disclosure of the fair values of these

items is presented.
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’'s management is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. At each
reporting date, the Group’s management analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
Independent professional valuers are engaged for the
valuation as appropriate. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the Group’s management. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial

reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the loans advanced from non-
controlling shareholders, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk

and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of equity
option accumulator and decumulator contracts are
measured using a valuation technique based on
assumptions that are supported by observable market

prices or rates.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

6. EMITAENLAFEEERAFEE

EERX (&)

AEEEEEEEE TSR
FEEMAEZBRNER - B
H AEEEBEES MR
BEzEPYEEHEMAZIER
B BYEXGHEMTSEEEERZ
HEE -HEAAREEEEREM X
g - HEBEMERSEBFRARN
FHNEFYBREREAEREZEE

R o

7
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~
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TREELRBENAFEENAZIAR
SR %ﬁ(@ﬁL%%ﬂ.ﬁﬁ%ﬁéW)M
AR S THARXZEREARK - N7
&&ﬂgj“)}ﬂ%uﬁﬁ@ﬁf‘iﬁ

FEEBRB R BN 2 ER R BIRITR
HMEROATFEENERENER
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s and the

Company's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Group
rEHE

.M ITANAFTEERATE
BEEX (&)
NEEEER
TERERAEERAQTSEBT AW
ATEEAEBER

BA T B E5BAEE -

Fair value measurement using

AR EEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERE O EARAEE BERAT
TS HmE mAE BEmAE
(B—fEX) (B=ER) (B=ER) a5
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
THETT THTT T THETT
As at 31 March 2015 R=ZT—HF
=A=+-—H
Equity investments at B i@IBmIZ A F
fair value through BEINERZ
profit or loss [ S & 383,579 - - 383,579
As at 31 March 2014 R =T —H4F
=RA=+—8H
Equity investments at BB EBmIZAF
fair value through BEINERZ
profit or loss IRERE 449,671 - — 449,671

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

36.cMITANAFEERAEE
BEE R (&)
AFEEER (&)
TRERAEERAQATZEMIA

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s and the WAFEEFERER : (&)
Company's financial instruments: (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) AN FEESEMNEE - (&)
Company
PNV
Fair value measurement using
AFEEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EE EARAEE BERARTA
TS HE WAE BEm AR
(B—BXR) (BZERX) (B=ER) =k
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$" 000
THET FHET THET THET
As at 31 March 2015 RZ=Z—HF
=B=+—H
Equity investments at BB EBmIE A F
fair value through BEINEZ
profit or loss f #E 1% & 191,243 = = 191,243
As at 31 March 2014 R T —H%F
=HA=+—H
Equity investments at  EiBEmIZ A F
fair value through EBEIKRZ
profit or loss xR & 227,105 - - 227,105
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value MAERER BEEFE-RBAREZ

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

=N NPA S EEEAYNEE YNEE N ol =N
BMAFPBEASE(ZZE—MUFE : &) -
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s and the

Company's financial instruments: (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

Group
TEE

36.cMITANAFEERAFEE
BERERX (&)
RFEEER (E&)
TRERAEERAATESHRIAN

AFEEEER :

A FIEETENEE -

(%)

Fair value measurement using

AFEEFERA
Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ER O ERATERE BERAFTA
™5 | E BmAE BEmAE
(B—BR) (B=ZEBRX) (B=ER) &t
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
FAET TFHET TETT FAET
As at 31 March 2015 R=-Z—HF
=HA=+—H
Derivative financial PTHE € Bt
instruments TA - 4,408 - 4,408
As at 31 March 2014 R ZZ — U4
=A=+—8H
Derivative financial TESH
instruments T A - 3,548 - 3,548

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

36.ERMIANAFEERAFE
BEE R (&)
ANEEERER (&)
TERETRAEERAQTSET AR

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s and the

Company's financial instruments: (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued)

Company

ZAN|

NP EEFERER

(%)

BN FIEEGTENRE  (B)

Fair value measurement using

AFEEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ER O OEXRTEE BEARAT
™G |E W AE BE@AE
(8—TER) (B=ER) (B=ER) &5t
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
FAT THT FHET FAT
As at 31 March 2015 R=-—ZT—EHF
=A=+—8H
Derivative financial T4 <
instruments TA - 2,204 - 2,204
As at 31 March 2014 RZ=_ZT—M4F
=A=+—H
Derivative financial PTAE St
instruments T A - 1,774 - 1,774

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2014: Nil).

RAFEER TREERERAEED
MEAEE -BRARE-_ERZAER
FEAFBHE=BROHAFEE
E(ZFT—MF: #\) -
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

7. HEABREEEREREE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, bank
deposits and cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term

debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group does not hedge interest rate fluctuations.
However, management closely monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's and the
Company's profit after tax and retained profits (through

the impact on floating rate borrowings).

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E—ARF=ZA=+—H

37. MK EREREBEREEK (8)

R R AR ()
TERTEGBBRETE - fH%
MR ARED 2 ERT AL
R 2 R B B R AR B0 I (R
FHFEETEBEE) LRD K
R -

Group Company
AEE eI
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in
Increase/ profit after
(decrease) in tax and

basis points  retained profits

(decrease) in
Increase/ profit after
(decrease) in tax and

basis points  retained profits

MREB &R BRE &R
2y RREERA 2 KRBT
#gm/Rd)  #/mCEL) £ GAD) 8B/ GD)
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET FHET

2015 “E-HF

Hong Kong dollar BT 15 (7) 15 -
Hong Kong dollar BT (15) 7 (15) -
Singapore dollar % T 15 (29) 15 -
Singapore dollar K 7T (15) 29 (15) -
2014 —T-mE

Hong Kong dollar BT 15 (88) 15 )
Hong Kong dollar BT (15) 88 (15) 2
Singapore dollar B T 15 (65) 15 (16)
Singapore dollar 3T (15) 65 (15) 16
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015

—E-hRF¥=RA=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs
were denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the

end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible

change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all

other variables held constant, of the Group’s and the

Company's profit after tax and retained profits (due

to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and

liabilities).

2015

If Hong Kong dollar
weakens against
the Singapore dollar

If Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against
the Singapore dollar

2014

If Hong Kong dollar
weakens against
the Singapore dollar

If Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against
the Singapore dollar

ZE-ARfF

fis B 7T 5
N TRz (2

BT R
H R T IHE

WAETR
BT E

fis B 7T 3L
BT IHE

37. M ERERE B EREEKR (H8)

ShEE LB (48)
TRETR RS MR E M2 BUREE T
B8 T T AN TTRE 2R ] BE IR A R K
BZBERT  REBRARBFRHE
BN EREEMN(AEEEERAE
N EELREE) HIRBNOGRRE -

Group

r5E
Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) in

(decrease) in
foreign
currency rate

HBER
#m,/ (8D

%

(10)

profit after

tax and
retained profits
BB & A
RREEF
#m,/ (A4)
HK$' 000
TET

26,062

(26,062)

33,643

(33,643)

Company
VAN
Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit after
foreign tax and
currency rate  retained profits
BRB %R A
M= RREEA
#m/ (i) B/ GRD)
% HK$' 000
FET
10 19,815
(10) (19,815)
10 21,438
(10) (21,438)
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

The Group provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is
the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other
financial assets of the Group which comprise cash
and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial
investment, an amount due from a related company
and other receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There is no significant credit risk as
the tenants have paid security deposits as collateral to
the Group for the lease of cruise ships and investment
properties.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s and
the Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are disclosed in notes 18
and 19 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.0 BEREEEERKE (8)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRS (&)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities RIBEBETORITIRRR » L THEHFIAR
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the SERSFEHR A ETEA
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
Group
rEE
2015
—E-RF
3to
On  Lessthan less than 1to5 Over 5
demand 3 months 12 months years years Total
=f@A
& =R t=fAR -ERFf BBIF BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET THERT THET THET THET
Due to a related JEN R 2 7]
company B 12 - - - - 12
Interest-bearing bank 3t 84847
borrowings (Note) EE NGRS 5,835 333 1,113 5,937 27,171 40,389
Loans advanced from  AEEHTEAF]
non-controlling ZIFERAER
shareholders of the B2
Group's subsidiaries &3k - - - 131,823 - 131,823
Accruals JEst R - 1,574 - - - 1,574
Other payables and HinEARIK
deposits received [BEVeEa 51,298 651 1,187 2,139 - 55,275
Derivative financial TR
instruments TA - 1,952 2,456 - - 4,408
57,145 4510 4,756 139,899 27,171 233,481
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

37. B RARE

HERERBXE (&)

RBE SRR (&)

RIEE RT #IRITIR AR

C AT SR

SERBERRzcRAEZHA ¢

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows: (48)
(continued)
Group
ZINE S
2014
—E-mE
3to
On Less than less than 1t05 Over 5
demand 3 months 12 months years years Total
=f8A
fEZK PRI EOR
[Ege =fEA T+ A —ZhF  BALE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER FET THET THEX TER
Interest-bearing bank 3t 83817
borrowings (Note) fE R (i) 65,277 235 698 3,340 22,664 92,214
Interest-bearing other  #FEH At
borrowings fig 5k 30,028 - - - - 30,028
Loans advanced from  AEEREAF
non-controlling Z IEERIRR
shareholders of the B2
Group's subsidiaries &3k - - - 184,525 - 184,525
Trade payables EREZER - 2,654 - - - 2,654
Accruals fERt TR 33 2,406 - - - 2,439
Other payables and ~ EHiEREEH K
deposits received [E/eEn 12,197 17,885 484 3,249 - 33,815
Derivative financial TSR
instruments I8 - - 3,548 - - 3,548
107,535 23,180 4,730 191,114 22,664 349,223
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

7. KAKREEEZEREGEK (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRS (&)
Note: B 5T

Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group
are term loans in the amount of HK$5,835,000 (31 March
2014: HK$65,277,000). Each of the loan agreements
contain a repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time and therefore,
for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total

amount is classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clauses, the directors do not
believe that the loans will be called, in their entirety or in
part, within 12 months and they consider that the loans will
be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in
the loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of
these financial statements, the Group’s compliance with the
loan covenants, the lack of events of default, and the fact that
the Group has made all previously scheduled repayments
on time. In accordance with the terms of the loans of the
Group, the contractual undiscounted payment of interest-

bearing bank loans at the end of the reporting period will be

AEBNGERITERERRTZEHERS
5,835,000 L (ZE—MWF=A=+—
H :65,277,000%7T) - EERBZEHEHE
RERBERF BRI - 46 TIRITEGE
- AIBERFBEIES - A - 3t Ll B H
AknmE - @eEsfEalEEREERE] -

BEA LG EEMHE - AEERH
TeaRt+—ERRNEEREDEE - FE
R BREZEERBEERBEANAE
R B EE - sFETDZE BRI AEERNE
e B 1 $h AR AL E A HIm B G AR - AN E
BETERHm  UWEMEAEEE UK
AN G B AR EE P A SE AT B A RIR - BRI
REEERAER - R|MESER - 5 RIR
TEROCETRRTEERZTOT

as follows:
Group
TEE
3to
Less than less than 1to5 Over 5
3 months 12 months years years Total
=@A
LR ESSONS
=@EA +=@A —ZHF BBEAF R
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TET THET TAET THET FAETT
2015 —E—RF 1,086 3,372 8,984 27,171 40,613
2014 —E—F 51,518 9,601 12,496 31,216 104,831
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FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial

REE b ()

RIEE T HIRITIR RSN

7. KRAKMEEEZEREE (&)

AT #E A

liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based NERMERR B ETIEA
on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as
follows:
Company
¥ NN
3to
On Less than less than
demand 3 months 12 months Total
=@EBEDLIR
EEREER LPR=EA +=@A Fkc]
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$"'000 HK$' 000
TAET FAT TAET TAET
2015 —E-EF
Derivative financial TEE R
instruments TA - 976 1,228 2,204
Accruals et FRIE - 1,495 1,495
Due to subsidiaries FE 1 BT /B8 A Rl R IR 372,818 - 372,818
Guarantees given to ALy EENG
banks in connection EHANREM
with facilities utilised by 1T RT
subsidiaries B AR 29,648 - 29,648
402,466 2,471 1,228 406,165
2014 —E—NF
Derivative financial TES R
instruments TE - - 1,774 1,774
Interest-bearing other EHM
borrowings R 14,439 - 14,439
Accruals JEEHFUIE - 1,561 1,561
Due to subsidiaries N EPNGIE ] 395,308 - 395,308
Guarantees given to FhETE 2 A
banks in connection EHAMNBREM
with facilities utilised by T RT
subsidiaries i) IR 92,214 - 92,214
501,961 1,561 1,774 505,296
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
(note 20) as at 31 March 2015. The Group's and the
Company's listed investments are listed on the stock
exchanges of Hong Kong and Singapore and are valued
at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting

period.

The equity market indices for the following stock
exchanges, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and their respective highest and lowest points

during the year were as follows:

31 March

2015

—E-HE

=ZA=+-H

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BE-BAEEY 24,901
Singapore — Straits Times Index N — B IR E RIE S 3,447

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

MBERABREREBRERBE (&)

g R e

PSR (B AR [ B A2 45 AR M 48 BUK 7 R (3
MEFEEZEIMERNERES R
FEENSKNRAR R-FT-—HF=
A=+—8 AEEMEHHREE
BRRIRE D ERBEBBERAFE
1B B 2 B4R & B {8 Bl £ T A A
& (M7£20) » NEB LA R R L
BRERERBERAMEZESFRS
FrE™ - YR HmE R RIZA®RT EF
B -

REMERRNBRAR S AL ERRLE
REF - NIBEHERGIIHRETISE
H URRFRESENER KRR
AN ¢

High/low 31 March High/low
2015 2014 2014
/1 —ET-[FE 5/ &

“E-FF Z=A=1t—H —E-NF

25,363/ 22,151 24,112/
21,680 19,426
3,469/ 3,189 3,465/

3,150 2,953
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2015

—E-hRF¥=RA=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.
AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to
every 10% change in the fair value of the equity
investments of the Group and the Company, with all

other variables held constant, based on their carrying

MBERBREEBREREE (&)

IR REE AR R B ()
TREREEEHREBTIAET - B

BRERENREEHARZERE ¥
AREBRARRRERE 2 A FEE
FHIB100EE 2 FRE -

amounts at the end of the reporting period:

Group
rE
Carrying
amount
of equity
investments
RERE
HEREE
HK$' 000
FET
2015 —E-IfF
Investments listed in: RE MR :
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BE-RIEEE 234,292
Singapore — Held-for-trading K —HEEER 149,287
2014 —E-mF
Investments listed in: RELMR:
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BERB-HEEER 279,513
Singapore — Held-for-trading Mg —HEEE 170,158

216 Annual Report 2015 %3

Increase/
(decrease) in

profit after

Increase/ tax and
(decrease) retained
in fair value profits
NFEE BRBE % 05 A
@,/ RRE G
(R2) #in,/ (A)

% HK$'000

FHET

10 19,563

(10) (19,563)

10 14,929

(10) (14,929)

10 23,339

(10) (23,339)

10 17,016

(10) (17,016)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BBEREEEERRE (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) IR REE AR LB (4])
TRETEMBEHRETET R
BRERENMERARZREE ¥
AEBRARNRARERE 2 N FEE
FHIR10%0EE 2 FRE - (8)

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to
every 10% change in the fair value of the equity
investments of the Group and the Company, with
all other variables held constant, based on their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period:

(continued)

Company
b N
Increase/
(decrease) in
Carrying profit after
amount Increase/ tax and
of equity (decrease) retained
investments in fair value profits
AFEE BBl A
RERE @, RREEF
M EREE (R 2) #m,/ ()
HK$'000 % HK$' 000
FET FET
2015 —E-HEF
Investments listed in: RE MR :
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BE-—RIFEER 116,600 10 9,736
(10) (9,736)
Singapore — Held-for-trading MK —FEEE 74,643 10 7,464
(10) (7,464)
2014 —T-mF
Investments listed in: BELETR
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BAE-RIEEE 142,026 10 11,859
(10) (11,859)
Singapore — Held-for-trading g —-HIEEE 85,079 10 8,508
(10) (8,508)
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.0EAKREEBZRKEE (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2015 and
2014.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.0 KERBREEEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued) EARERE (&)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REBRFNAEREEG B RREFTEE
is total indebtedness divided by equity attributable A BREBGBELRBBEFR AR
to owners of the Company. The Group's policy is NAEEB AR - NEB 2R
to maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Total R EREE B EAERHEBE50% o
indebtedness represents interest-bearing bank and BEE BT ERITREMETK o BN
other borrowings. The gearing ratios as at the end of EHRRCEREEELERMAT -

the reporting periods were as follows:

Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —FTHEHF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FET FAT
Interest-bearing bank and FEREERITR
other borrowings HpER 29,648 122,242
Equity attributable to owners ZIN/NSIE RSN
of the Company JE A HE = 1,455,797 1,429,985
Gearing ratio BERBABELE 2% 9%
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2015
—E-RF=A=+—H

38. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 38. LE B F
The comparative statement of profit or loss has LB ERAEEBRERFEERILLS
been re-presented as if the operation discontinued HEBE R LR BRI BRI IEE
during the current year had been discontinued at the o (MHaE11) °

beginning of the comparative period (note 11).

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39 B Mz 2t E
The financial statements were approved and PHEMEECR T —AF AT
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 REESEHERKERNE -
June 2015.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FMBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and NREBEBRERETBRFESEES 2 TIED
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five /ST XBIEMROLKEELSE  BE AE
financial years, as extracted from the published audited — FIZEIZRRERMBEM T

financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS ¥E&

Year ended 31 March

BE=-A=t—-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HfF —ZT-—-NF ZT-—=F —T-——F —T——F
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TERT FET TERT FET TET
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(&z51) (K25 (K87 (KEY)

REVENUE FROM CONTINUING SERE X%

OPERATIONS EERBA 147,911 67,797 204,503 32,626 148,728
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEEFHERE

FROM CONTINUING XBEE

OPERATIONS #9358 R 95,897 52,337 198,532 14,452 248,571

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AEE—-BEEKIE

FROM A DISCONTINUED REXKELE

OPERATION wER (BE) 16,944 (7,344) (59) (7,378)  (10,401)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KAREEBA

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BiEREE

OF THE COMPANY i 98,830 29,907 155,580 17,163 207,317
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FiHtLEEEERERAA

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFPRBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and NEEBREREMKRFESEEE D TIER
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five /B ZBEHRERMLKEESE L& AEB
financial years, as extracted from the published audited — FZEIEIREFNTFET - (48)

financial statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE -EBERFERES
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=A=+—-H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-HF —T-@NF ZT-=F ZT-——F —T——F

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAT TET TAET TET

TOTAL ASSETS BEELR 1,695,271 1,766,003 1,660,784 1,588,353 1,699,292
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE (225,771)  (352,352)  (255,101)  (272,665) (341,118)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  J % % fE 25 (13,703) 16,334 40,385 26,976 19,634

1,455,797 1,429,985 1,446,068 1,342,664 1,377,808
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

85

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),

Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong

BB RZBEERT- 115K
ZOMBESH T (5 &) 23A5% 54

Unit Nos. 3810 and 3811,

38th Floor, West Tower,

Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

BB T B+ 168-2005%
EEFRLPEE38E
3810%381158 &E 1y

Ground Floor including its cockloft,
Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BEBNERAKEE3I015
EEZH T (BREME)

Use

Ay

Commercial

[GES

Commercial
(eSS

Commercial

GES

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MEFIE

31 March 2015

—E-RFZA=+-H

REWME

Percentage

Nature of interest

R EZE D

Medium-term leasehold 100
FEATEE

Medium-term leasehold 100
FRHEIR &

Medium-term leasehold 100
FEATE &
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

YZEFTE
31 March 2015
—E-R4=ZA=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

B

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BBNERABZIT THAIHE
B T B S TN 555 5

Shop 3, Ground Floor,
Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENERABZIT T H43HE
BT L E S H T 355 58

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736
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Use

Az

Commercial

GES

Commercial

GES

Commercial

GES

REYW=E (]R)

Nature

2N

Medium-term leasehold
FEATE &

Medium-term leasehold

hHIEHE

Freehold
KA FEHE

Percentage
of interest
EEASL

100

100

100
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